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14.     

  

Who We Are 

 

Cathedrals within the Church of England hold a unique position in society, which enables 

them to connect people with the sacred, build links between individuals, organisations and 

communities, and sustain tradition and identity.  Guildford Cathedral is a modern 

expression of this traditional sacred space: the last Church of England cathedral 

consecrated on a new site (1961), and rooted in local identity and living memories 

through the many ‘brickgivers’ who helped fund its completion.   

 

At its heart of the life of a cathedral is a pattern of regular worship offered to God. Daily 

prayer, a place of refuge and reflection, services open to all form the basis of everything 

we do. We seek to be a beacon for the Diocese of Guildford and people of Surrey.  Our 

vibrant musical life draws many, especially young people, to participate in the life of the 

cathedral and through that participation encounter the good news of Jesus Christ.  Our 

welcome seeks to draw all into a deeper awareness of shared humanity and provide rest 

and inspiration.  Our engagement with the University of Surrey is a strong and mutually 

beneficial relationship of academic wonder, contemporary debate and service to the 

community.  Our relationship with the parishes, schools and chaplaincies of our Diocese 

is one of service as we offer hospitality, resource and encouragement.  As the seat of the 

Bishop’s Ministry and Mission we seek to resource him as he leads the whole church in 

the transformation of lives promised through the life and ministry of Jesus Christ. 
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Chapter Report 

 

This Annual Report contains the financial statements of The Cathedral Church of the Holy Spirit, Guildford (known as 

Guildford Cathedral) for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Cathedral’s Annual Report comprises the Chapter review,  

legal and administrative information and details of the Cathedral’s  structure, governance and management. These are set out in 

Appendices 1 to 14. The financial statements are set out on pages 13 to 38. 

 

Chapter Review 2016 

 

This review focusses on 2016 and also encompasses the first half of 2017 in terms of activity.  2016 was a year unlike any 

other.  The People’s Cathedral project kept up apace with the building works, Oral History, work on the Archives and Visitor 

Engagement to name but a few facets which have demanded time and attention from staff and volunteers.  As the year drew to 

a close the Cathedral was filled with 200,000 tonnes of scaffolding, 75% of our Archive was catalogued, stories from those 

who had participated in the building and furnishing of the Cathedral had been recorded and prepared for display, the items in 

the Treasury had been photographed, volunteers had been recruited and we began looking towards a new landscape which 

would be 2017. 

 

The Marquee was a welcome addition to our provision of hospitality and engagement and grew in popularity as the days 

became colder and the Cathedral grew icier.  Those who continued to attend worship are to be commended for tenacity and 

perseverance.  It was a difficult time but determination to continue offering worship to God meant that the building didn’t close 

and as I write, we have come out of the most difficult period.  

 

The virgers and musicians were particularly affected by the challenges presented by the building works and we are very 

grateful to them for their continued dedication and hard work. Chapter are grateful to the Vicar, Churchwardens and PCC of St 

Nicolas Church, Guildford for their generous hospitality as we ‘took Choral Evensong into the town’.  We ended up spending 

many more weeks there than first anticipated and it’s thanks also to the parents of our choristers and to the choir chaperones 

for ensuring that all continued to run smoothly whilst we were out of our building. 

 

One facet of The People’s Cathedral was to provide a new wayfinding system around the site, new publications and 

interpretation material and new signage which reflects our identity and purpose.  In order for this to happen a design 

professional was recruited by Chapter to work for three months doing the necessary research and design and then to continue 

work closely with the fabrication and installation firm company. Chapter is very grateful to Martin Gwilliams for undertaking 

this work for no fee. His research included more than 100 structured and informal interviews, the use of questionnaires and 

attendance at many meetings of different teams of staff and volunteers. This has provided a uniform ‘look’ around the 

Cathedral with the cross of Christ at the centre and symbols of the Holy Spirit inspiring and sending people out to make Christ 

known.  Martin continues as a volunteer, responsible for ensuring that all our communications reflects our core purpose of 

‘knowing Christ and making Christ known’. 

 

During 2016 we said farewell to The Reverend Canon Dr Nicholas Thistlethwaite as he retired after almost 16 years as Canon 

Precentor and he and Tessa prepared to move to Ely.  It was with deep sadness that we learned of Tessa’s death only months 

after they settled into their new community and many of her friends from Guildford were able to join in the celebration of her 

life at Ely Cathedral.  As Nicholas retired the responsibility for Worship was taken on by Canon Andrew Bishop and the 

Venerable Stuart Beake, working together as Co-Acting Precentor.  Andrew and Stuart have continued their work as Anglican 

Chaplain at the University of Surrey and as Archdeacon of Surrey and have somehow found the time to do a greatly increased 

work load. We all have cause to be very grateful to them for taking on this role and for providing leadership in this core facet 

of life at the Cathedral.   

 

All the work at the Cathedral, whether on-going, or as part of our current project, is but the tip of a very large iceberg.  Beneath 

the surface is an outstanding team of people led by Matt O’Grady who continue to bring tenacity and determination to all they 

do as we work together to make Guildford Cathedral a place where we can know Christ and make Christ known.  The People’s 

Cathedral project, led by Helen Ellis, has been and continues to be one of deep complexity and almost weekly surprises. Helen 

and her team, like Matt and his, have ensured that creative solutions to problems, innovative approaches to multiple demands 

on space and time as well as good humour have become markers of what was achieved in 2016. 

 

Canon Julie writes elsewhere about the contribution education, schools and public engagement has made to our core work.  

Working together with The People’s Cathedral team Canon Julie has introduced a popular Grave Talk seminar, providing a 

creative and gentle way for people to talk about death and dying matters and resourcing parishes in our diocese and she has 

contributed to the ‘Transforming Work’ programme delivered by the Diocesan Discipleship, Vocations and Ministry Team.  

Schools workshops have been delivered in the Marquee and our kneeler Advent Calendar on social media told the Christmas 

story and introduced new people to what the Cathedral has to offer. People of all ages have engaged in different ways with 

each other and with topics and issues of the day.  

 

As 2017 opened Chapter, with Linden Homes, had our application for planning permission for a development on the south side 

of the site considered by Guildford Borough Planning Committee.  Despite a very full recommendation for approval from the 
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Borough Planning Officers, the legal and finance departments of the Borough, the Cathedrals Fabric Commission for England 

(the planning authority for all cathedrals), Historic England and consent from the Charity Commissioners, the application was 

refused.  This was an enormous and unexpected disappointment and we are now in the period of receiving legal advice 

regarding the next steps.   

 

We said farewell to Paul Provost at Easter as he left us to take up the post of Rector Chori (Director of Music) at Southwell 

Minister. Paul, Ruth and Martha left with many thanks from colleagues and congregation members for his musicianship, 

detailed attention to planning and Katherine spoke movingly of her gratitude for the collegiality and fun which Paul brought to 

the music department.  We have appointed Richard Moore as Sub Organist and he will begin his time with us on the 1
st
 of 

August. 

 

As we reach the midpoint of 2017 we are looking forward to a very bright future.  The People’s Cathedral Project will leave 

behind much for which we are grateful – not simply works to the building, for there are other works still ongoing.  We expect 

to welcome many, many more people as we celebrate our new building, provide specialised tours and visits, including Tower 

Tours, increase our Marketing capacity and work more cohesively to focus on outreach in all areas of our work and ministry.  

We look forward to welcoming a new Residentiary Canon in the autumn. 

 

All Cathedrals face financial challenge and we are experiencing a particular challenge with our cashflow due to the way that 

money is received from the HLF to pay the invoices we submit and the delay in the sale of the land.  Chapter is grateful to the 

Diocesan Board of Finance for a loan facility and the Cathedral Finance Committee are exercising diligence is securing the 

best support in order to advise Chapter effectively.  There is more regarding finance later in this report. 

 

In 2016 Chapter formed a Fundraising Committee, appointing Julian Roberts as Chair.  This committee is responsible to 

Chapter for developing our fundraising capacity and working closely with our small Fundraising Team to improve and increase 

what we raise and also our relationship with all our donors.  Susan Barry joined us as Head of Fundraising and she and the 

Fundraising Committee are full of energy and ideas and this brings enthusiasm to others. 

 

Early in 2017 I enquired of the Church Commissioners if there would be any focussed assistance we might be able to receive 

given our small staff team.  Chapter is pleased that we have had since then the support of a consultant who has been helping 

Chapter bring together our priorities and focus following on from the work which was done on our identity during the second 

half of 2016. This has brought encouragement and vigour to the staff team and to Chapter as we prepare for the next phase in 

the life of the Cathedral.  

 

The Cathedral Council successfully undertook the process for a revision of the Cathedral Constitution and Statutes- a process 

long overdue – and we now have a Constitution and Statutes which are compliant with the Cathedrals Measure, give breadth 

and flexibility to Chapter to develop further into an effective strategic body and for the Cathedral Council to encompass the 

whole of the Diocese and region which we serve.  It is good to note that a new Community Committee has been elected in 

2017 and this will continue to invigorate our lives as we reach out to those who aren’t yet members of the Cathedral 

community, as well as draw in those who already are, in order that we have the fullest possible participation in all our work. 

 

Early in 2017 Shirley-Margaret Lloyd completed her term as Chief Steward and we are very grateful to her for all she gave in 

that role particularly.  I was pleased that Trish Lambert accepted my invitation to become Chief Steward and on behalf of all 

the clergy thank you to Trish and to all our Stewards. 

 

Our Guides and our Day Chaplains, perhaps of all our volunteers, have borne the brunt of the challenges due to the building 

works.  They have remained on duty – at times in near zero temperatures – welcoming visitors, leading prayers, explaining all 

the works and generally keeping the show on the road.  I am grateful to all of them and particularly to Janet Mathews, our 

Chief Guide for her encouragement of her wonderful team.  

 

Annual Reports can only contain a snapshot of all that goes on in the year in question.  The work behind the scenes which is so 

vital is overseen by Matt O’Grady, our Director of Operations.  Throughout this year of continual challenges, many of them 

unexpected, Matt’s calm leadership is valued by his entire team of staff and volunteers and by me and my clergy colleagues. 

 

Dianna Gwilliams 

 

 

The Very Reverend Dianna Gwilliams  

Dean  
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Governance 

 

During 2016, as in 2015, Chapter has continued to focus on the financial situation and the two projects which will help realise 

the Guildford Cathedral 2020 Vision – The People’s Cathedral  and  Building Guildford’s Cathedral Quarter. The fiscal 

considerations, principally the deficit, and these projects are inextricably linked, as The People’s Cathedral Project is a 

considerable investment for the Cathedral and Building Guildford’s Cathedral Quarter will provide long term financial 

stability through a sizeable endowment which will generate income to support ongoing repairs to the Cathedral.  

 

Guildford Cathedral Vision 2020 (The People’s Cathedral) 

 

Following the award of the Heritage Lottery grant of £4.6 million in 2015, a contract with Buxton Building Contractors was 

signed in February 2016 and the refurbishment of the Cathedral commenced on 4 April. Originally due to complete in May 

2017, subsequent delays, principally caused by the engineering problems related to the construction of false decks above the 

Nave and Crossing, meant that the final date of the contract was in August 2017. In terms of outreach & engagement and 

interpretation, the project has already been a huge success, with highlights for 2016 including: 

 

 The project has engaged over 4,800 people. Highlights have been coffee concerts, heritage talks and family fun 

days; 

 A six month artists’ residency has been completed by the Cabinet of Curiosity, a duo working in paper and 

photography, and another started by Richard Ellis, an architectural photographer; 

 A dissertation by Will Barnes, a second year geography student at Royal Holloway University, has been 

commissioned on the kneeler design and manufacture project overseen by Lady Prudence Maufe; 

 The Project Archivist, with her team, has catalogued 1,300 items and digitised 385; 

 83% of the Oral History interview target has been met with many more in the pipeline 

 The Fabric Advisory Committee has approved the revised interpretation proposal, which will include vastly 

improved signs, and will be installed in 2017; 

 The Project Volunteer and Apprentice Officer has recruited 42 volunteers, exceeding the Project target. 

 

 

Guildford Cathedral Vision 2020 (Building Guildford’s Cathedral Quarter)  

 

The design of the development was submitted for planning permission on 31 October 2015 but did not appear before the 

Guildford Borough Council Planning Committee until 15 February 2017. Unfortunately the application was not approved by 

the committee and legal advice is being sought. 

 

Worship and Music 

 

2016 was a momentous year for liturgy and music at the Cathedral.  In addition to the retirement of Canon Nicholas 

Thistlethwaite as Precentor, we also said goodbye to Penny Peters, Music Department Secretary. The departure of such key 

figures inevitably affects any team of people and gives challenges, to which all in liturgy and music have risen. Carolyn 

Howard-Jones took up the appointment of Liturgy and Music Administrator just prior to Advent.  

 

Prior to the appointment of a successor to Canon Nicholas some modifications to the liturgy were made beginning in Advent 

2016. The intention was to enable wider and deeper participation in the liturgy and to reflect a little more of the range of 

Anglican liturgical material set out in Common Worship whilst remaining faithful to the cathedral style. The underlying 

question put to the cathedral community was, ‘how does the liturgy aid my encounter with God and shape my discipleship?’ 

That question remains live. Responses were invited through correspondence and a congregational meeting reflecting on that 

question in January 2017. Chapter continues to discuss liturgical matters. These modifications also had a practical impact on 

all involved with the delivery of liturgy and music, to which they responded with immense care, diligence and patience. 

 

Musical highlights include the BBC Radio 3 Choral Evensong broadcast by the Girls and Men sung at St John’s School, 

Leatherhead, due to the cathedral building works. Many past and existing choristers, as well as our diocesan bishop, played in 

the orchestra at the ‘Raise the Roof’ concert. The Guildford Cathedral Singers, directed by John Bawden, continue to play their 

part in choral worship offered at the Cathedral, singing on a number of Sundays during school vacations, as well as singing a 

joint service with the Cathedral Choir once a term. 

 

In terms of existing outreach, the Cathedral’s programme Surrey Get Vocal continued to work in local state schools under the 

leadership of the Organist and Master of the Choristers and in partnership with Lanesborough School. With financial support 

from the Diocese of Guildford, The Butler Trust and the Chapter of Guildford Cathedral this programme aims to introduce 

children to the joys of singing by placing vocal coaches in schools for an intensive period of training leading to a termly public 

concert in the Cathedral. 

 

The daily round of worship, enriched by our music and undergirded by the dedication of virgers, servers and stewards, 

throughout the liturgical year continues to be exemplary. Chapter’s thanks goes to: Katherine Dienes-Williams, Organist and 
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Master of the Choristers and the team she leads and works with, choristers, lay clerks, chorister families, chaperones, voice 

coaches; Paul Williamson, Dean’s Virger and his team of virgers, full and part time; Chris Nott and the team of servers; and 

Shirley-Margret Lloyd, Chief Steward until 2017, and her team of Senior Stewards and Cathedral Stewards. 

 

 

Learning and Engagement 

 

Learning & Engagement delivered many activities during 2016 and some of the highlights are shown below.  

 Engagement with our Artists in Residence (prior to their talks/final exhibitions in May/June 2017); 

 Lent talks  entitled “Praying the Psalms”: Canon Dr Hazel Whitehead, Mrs Katherine Dienes-Williams, Canon 

Martin Neale, Canon Dr Andrew Bishop, Canon Dr Julie Gittoes; 

 The continuation of a bi-monthly theological book group on Sunday mornings (including Dementia: living in the 

memories of God by John Swinton, The Name of God is Mercy from Pope Francis and a paper by Canon Julie 

Gittoes on singleness; 

 Study Groups during Advent (Being Disciples by Rowan Williams); 

 Youth group, Sunday School and confirmation classes; 

 The introduction of Sunday morning Lectio Divina; 

 Invitations to teach/lead quiet days (e.g. lunch time seminar ‘Ethics and Loneliness’ within the School of  Nursing 

at the University of Surrey; singleness and ministry for diocesan youth and family workers); 

 “Flourishing Humanity”: expert speakers enabling us to engage with faith and issues in the public square 

(Sustainable Ethics with the Rt Rev’d Dr Christopher Herbert; Humanity and Animal Welfare with Dr Margaret 

Adam; International Development with Rev’d Sister Nora McNamara and Prof Stephen Morse); 

 Collaboration in planning and delivering the Diocesan Summer School – including a festival day – on the theme 

“Abundant Life”; 

 Hosting “Stories of Hope: Christian Discipleship in a Changing Climate” (with Ben Niblett from Tearfund, Ruth 

Valeria from Arocha, the Rt Rev’d Andrew Watson, Bishop of Guildford); 

  Hosting our first GCSE RS Study Day and new resources for our Special Educational Needs (SEN) programme; 

 The launch of a new offer for schools covering KS1-2 and introducing study days for  GCSE and A-level groups; 

 The People’s Cathedral Project has included the development of family activity days during half-term/summer 

holidays; 

 Archive Study Days in partnership with The People’s Cathedral Outreach and Engagement Officer. 

 

A new Head of Schools and Family Learning was appointed in February 2016: Charlotte Potter took up her post in September. 

The 2016 Sixth Form Question Time event was cancelled - but speakers have been re-booked for 2017. Due to the building 

work, we have not hosted art exhibitions, or the associated lecture programme. Canon Julie Gittoes took a period of Extended 

Ministerial Study Leave from April-June – including time visiting Sydney and Melbourne Cathedrals and research on theology 

of singleness.  

 

Enterprise Department  

 

Events 

 

In 2016 we saw almost all of our commercial events operating out of the Marquee. Following the cost reduction exercise in 

2015, the Enterprise Department continued to work with just Caroline Simcox and Katrina Jenkins providing the resources to 

plan and deliver all events throughout the year. 

 

Some of the highlights of 2016 were: 

 

 Our very own Paul and Catherine Williamson’s  Wedding Reception in January  

 University of Surrey Graduations in April and July 

 Providing the venue for the Surrey Finals of Young Enterprise, the UK’s leading enterprise and financial education 

charity reaching over 250,000 young people every year. 

 Awards Ceremony for the Association of Learning Providers in Surrey 

 Guildford Book Festival events where we welcomed Jeremy Paxman,  Damon Hill and Jodi Picoult  

 The Cathedral Winter Fair held over two days in November 

 

We were also delighted to host an event in December as the culmination of Guildford Shakespeare Company’s 10
th

 

Anniversary celebrations  

 

 

 

Shop  

 



 7 

The Shop had a turnover of £126,000 (2015: £136,000), generated a gross profit of 43% (2015: 44%) and a trading profit of 

£6,300 (2015: profit £2,000). This success was thanks to a dedicated team of staff and volunteers ably led by Sharon Collier.  

 

Refectory 

 

The Refectory turnover generated a commission to Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Ltd of £40,000 (2015 £41,000). The 

Cathedral is grateful for the assistance of Will Vinson and his Refectory team. 

 

Fundraising Department 

 

The Make your Mark Appeal ended at Easter 2016 and raised more than £1.9m, 96% of the original target. We are hugely 

grateful to all who contributed to the Appeal. All gifts – both big and small – will have had an impact on what we have been 

able to achieve.  Significant gifts received in 2016 for both the Make your Mark Appeal and towards the ongoing work at the 

Cathedral include:  

 Atlas Fund; 

 Alan Evans Memorial Trust; 

 Community Improvement Fund; 

 Friends of Cathedral Music; 

 Mrs A Hayter; 

 Hobson Charity; 

 Humphrey Richardson Taylor Trust; 

 Ms M Milner (bequest); 

 Porticus; 

 Radcliffe Trust; 

 Mr Nicholas Sealy OBE & The Hon Mrs Lavinia Sealy; 

 Surrey Historic Buildings Trust; 

 Vibrated Corn Trust; 

 Wates Family Enterprise Trust; 

 

The Fundraising Committee, working with the Fundraising team began the development of a campaign for legacy pledges both 

printed and downloadable materials, including a Will Making Guide. This campaign is called Faith in the Future and will 

continue to feature in our fundraising strategy.  In July Nicola Pratt joined as Fundraising Officer and we said thanks and 

farewell to Sian Newton, our Head of Fundraising as she left to take up a corresponding post at the Watts Gallery.  Susan Barry 

was appointed in late 2016 and she moved from Christian Aid to become our Head of Fundraising in early 2017.  Since she 

arrived a fundraising strategy has been developed with the Fundraising Committee and fundraising across a range of targeted 

income streams will take place in 2017 to ensure that unrestricted and restricted income will be delivered. This will allow us to 

continue to deliver our ongoing ministry as the People’s Cathedral. 

 

Fabric Report 

 

The Fabric Advisory Committee (FAC) was kept fully appraised of the progress of the World War One Centenary Cathedrals’ 

Repair Fund Project (first tranche) which completed in March 2016. This involved the replacement of the North and South 

Transept roofs, and re-pointing of both Transepts, the base of the Tower and areas of the South Wall. The sculpture by 

Nicholas Thompson on the eastern face of the Tower was also funded under the auspices of this project, and was unveiled in 

February 2016. A second tranche of World War One Centenary Cathedrals’ Repair Fund funding was awarded to the Cathedral 

in July 2016, and this will be used to replace the Quire and Presbytery roof, as well as more re-pointing work on the South 

Wall, by February 2018. Some of this funding will also be used for asbestos removal works carried out as part of The People’s 

Cathedral Project. The capital works under this project were also monitored closely by the FAC, which approved the proposals 

for interpretation items and a new wayfinding system in November 2016. 

 

Staff 

 

2016 was a difficult year with resignations of five staff members, including the whole of the Finance Department. This caused 

considerable disruption and much corporate knowledge was lost. However, by early 2017 new colleagues had been appointed 

and with the recruitment of a sixth Lay Clerk the Cathedral Staff was back at full strength. Many challenges remain as new 

staff members come to terms with their responsibilities in the middle of busy project activity, but the enthusiasm of dedication 

of all staff is truly inspiring and making the task of re-building the knowledge base that much easier. 

 

 

 

 

Volunteers 
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The Volunteers have continued their essential role in support of the work of the Cathedral, which has been particularly 

welcome during the period of staff vacancies.  Volunteers, like our staff, roll up their sleeves and often do far more than is 

required.  Chapter is very grateful to all of them.  As part of The People’s Cathedral project training for all volunteers who 

welcome people to the Cathedral in any capacity has been facilitated by Gill Thorpe as Volunteer and Apprentice Co-ordinator. 

Mr John Mitchell, the Cathedral LLM (Reader), has now raised £13,000 through his foreign coin collection scheme. 

 

Forecast of Maintenance Costs 

 

The Quinquennial Inspection due in 2016 has been postponed until late 2017, due to the major work being carried out in the 

Cathedral between April 2016 and August 2017. In 2011 the Quinquennial Inspection Report indicated that over the next 15 

years repair and maintenance costs would be in the region of £15m. Between then and the end of 2017 approximately £6m of 

works will have been done.  Chapter seeks to raise an endowment in order to provide regular income to be used for repairs and 

maintenance. 

 

Risk Management 

 

The principal risks in 2016 remained the underlying deficit, the sale of the land and the potential for cost escalation and 

programme overrun in The People’s Cathedral project. The first two remain major concerns, particularly in the light of the 

extra costs incurred on the refurbishment project as more asbestos was discovered. This means more of the unrestricted 

reserves are being utilised rather than being able to use income from the proposed endowment that would have been created if 

Guildford Borough Council Planning Committee had not refused planning permission in February 2017. To alleviate the cash 

flow pressure Chapter applied for realisation of the capital in the Newill Bequest, held in trust and administered by the 

Diocesan Board of Finance, which may be used for repairs, maintenance and associated works. This will reduce investment 

income in future years. Following the refusal of planning permission, the Cathedral is now in the process of taking legal advice 

regarding the next steps towards the land sale and residential development.  

 

Finances 

 

The 2016 accounts reflect six distinct activities: 

 The normal operations of the Cathedral; 

 The People’s Cathedral project capital appeal (until March 2016); 

 The People’s Cathedral project delivery phase, to remove the asbestos and renovate the interior of the Cathedral, 

interpretation and engagement; 

 The refurbishment of the organ  

 The World War One Centenary Repair Fund Project (first tranche) (until March 2016); 

 The sale of land. 

 

The results are summarised below. 

 

 

               

Results 2016 

Cathedral 

operations 

Capital 

Appeal 

HLF/Appeal 

refurbishment 

Organ 

refurbishment 

World 

War 1 

repairs 

Sale of 

Land Total 

    £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 

                 

Income   1,129 189 1,876 8 

 

296 - 3,498 

Expenditure   (1,337) (19) (2,425) (104) 

 

(302) (25) (4,212) 

Surplus/(Deficit) (208) 170 (549) (96) 

 

(6) (25) (714) 

Legacy   295                 -                     -                     -         -                 - 295 

Net gain on investments   44                 -                     -                     - 

      

        -                 -    44 

Net change in funds 131 170 (549)                (96) 

 

(6) (25) (375) 

 

 

 

     

 

  

 

Results 2015 

Cathedral 

operations 

Capital 

Appeal 

HLF/Appeal 

refurbishment 

Organ 

refurbishment 

World 

War 1 

repairs 

Sale of 

Land Total 
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    £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

 

£’000 £'000 £'000 

                 

Income (ex Legacy) 1,146 375 307                  - 

 

    288 

               

100 2,216 

Expenditure   (1,372) (80) (522)              - 

   

  (288) (27) (2,289) 

Surplus/(Deficit) (226) 295 (215)                   - 

 

- 73 (73) 

Legacy   27                -                    -                   - 

 

-               - 27 

Net gain on investments (52)                -                    -                   - 

       

-                - (52) 

Net change in funds (251) 295 (215)                   - 

 

- 73 (98) 

 

 

Investments 

 

The Cathedral’s investments performed satisfactorily.  The investments comprise an investment property (£311,000) and a 

portfolio of stocks and shares £1.39 m (2015: £1.35m).  Investment income totalled £80,000 (2015: £84,000) The income from 

the investment property was £16,000 (2015: £15,000). 

 

The investment portfolio is split between the unrestricted funds (£548,000) and the restricted/endowed funds (£840,000).   

 

The asset allocation of the portfolio at the end of 2016 was primarily invested into less volatile investments in line with our 

anticipated requirements.  The allocations were 1% in cash, 64% in fixed interest, 10% in Equities, 9% in property and 16% in 

alternative asset classes. 

 

To ensure appropriate professional management Charles Stanley & Co Ltd hold the portfolio on behalf of the Cathedral and 

manage it on a discretionary basis within agreed parameters.  A discretionary mandate enables them to monitor the portfolio on 

an ongoing basis and they are authorised to take timely action to adjust the portfolio as considered appropriate in response to 

market developments.  The Finance Committee monitors their performance. 

 

Reserves 

 

The Cathedral’s free unrestricted reserves rose to £746,000 (2015: £699,000) due to legacy income.  This is below the agreed 

reserves policy which is to maintain unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of £1.0m, representing approximately twelve- 

months of operational running costs, plus a reserve of £100,000 for unanticipated property repairs. 

 

Chapter discussed the deficit and reserves at length during the year and continue to believe that the sale of the land will 

ameliorate the situation although they recognise that more needs to be done to raise regular income or reduce expenditure. The 

income that will be generated from the endowment created from the land sale is restricted to repairs, maintenance and 

improvement of the Cathedral to further the Cathedral’s mission.  

 

During 2017 Chapter have been funding, alongside HLF grant income, the significant level of building work expenditure. 

Chapter have drawn £200,000 on a loan facility with the Diocese of Guildford which runs to 31
st
 March 2018 and continue to 

use this facility to avoid the need to sell investments to fund working capital.  Additionally, Chapter requested the realisation 

of the capital in the Newill Bequest, administered on its behalf by the Diocesan Board of Finance, which has been used to fund 

the work.  This Bequest has a capital value of £682,000 and its use will result in lower income in future years. 

 

Chapter will have a much clearer understanding of the level of reserves remaining once the refurbishment work is completed 

and the final invoices are paid. Chapter recognise that if the land sale does not go ahead then the reserves will not be sufficient 

to sustain many more years of deficit and discussions are being held with the Music Development Fund and the Church 

Commissioners to determine if there is any additional financial support available. These conversations are ongoing. Chapter 

continue to focus on delivery of The People’s Cathedral and Building Guildford’s Cathedral Quarter but acknowledge that 

there is a degree of uncertainty over the future financial position which they will continue to monitor so appropriate actions can 

be taken. Despite this uncertainty Chapter continue to believe that it is appropriate to prepare the accounts on a going concern 

basis. 
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Five Year Summary of Key Figures and Ratios 

  

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

  
£’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s 

(Deficit)/Surplus for the year including unrealised 

gains/(losses) on investments (375) (98) 537 (283) 87 

  

 

    

 

Legacies (295) (27) (27) (12) (209) 

 

(Gains)/losses on investments   (44)   52  (48) (114) (177) 

(Deficit)/Surplus before legacies and gains/(losses) on 

value of investments and properties (714) (73) 462 (409) (299) 

  

 

    Adjustments  

    

 

Capital appeal net of costs (170) (295) (882) (247) - 

 Site development income - (100) - - - 

 

Site development expenditure 25 27 83 133 

            

62 

 

HLF net expenditure 549                         215 44 17 - 

 

Major repairs less one-off grants 102            - - 269 84 

 

VAT settlement -            - - - 99 

 

Flower Festival        -                  -        -    38       - 

  

 

    Underlying deficit (208) (226) (293) (199) (54) 

  

 

    Unrestricted Reserves 746 695 842 1,184 1,543 

 

Public Benefit 

 

Although it is not a reporting requirement of the Church Commissioners, nevertheless Chapter confirm that they have 

complied with section 4 of the Charities Act 2006 to have regard to the public benefit guidance published by the Charity 

Commission in determining the activities of the Cathedral. The Cathedral not only serves the community daily in its religious 

and charitable work, but is an active resource of public importance in the promotion of religion, music, education and 

architecture. 

 

Approved by the Chapter of Guildford Cathedral and signed on its behalf 

 

 

…………………………………………………… 

The Very Reverend Dianna Gwilliams – Dean      

 

 

Dated ……………………………………………………… 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE CATHEDRAL CHURCH OF THE HOLY SPIRIT - 

GUILDFORD 
 

We have audited the financial statements of Cathedral Church of the Holy Spirit – Guildford, which comprises the consolidated 

statement of financial activities, the consolidated balance sheet, the entity statement of financial activities, the entity only balance 

sheet, the consolidated cashflow statement and the related notes for the year ended 31 December 2016. The financial reporting 

framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the United Kingdom 

and Republic of  Ireland’ 

 

This report is made solely to the Chapter’s members, as a body, in accordance with regulations made under Section 27 of the 

Cathedrals Measures 1999.  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members those matters we are required 

to and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 

Chapter and the Chapter members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

Respective responsibilities of Members of the Chapter and Auditors 
 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Chapter’s Responsibilities, the Chapter’s members are responsible for the preparation of 

financial statements which give a true and fair view. 

 

We have been appointed as auditors under Section 27 of the Cathedrals Measure 1999 and report in accordance with regulations made 

under that Measure. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable 

law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices 

Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.  

 

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance 

with the regulations specified by the Church commissions under the power given to them by Section 27 of the Cathedrals Measure 

1999. 

 

 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable 

assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an 

assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Cathedral’s circumstances and have been consistently applied 

and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Chapter; and the overall presentation of 

the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify material 

inconsistencies with the audited financial statements.  If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies 

we consider the implications for our report. 

 

 

Opinion on financial statements 

 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

 

 give a true and fair view of the Cathedral and its subsidiary’s affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of the incoming resources 

and application of resources including its income and expenditure for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

 the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the regulations specified by the Church 

Commissioners under the power given to them by Section 27 of the Cathedrals Measure 1999. 

 

 

Emphasis of Matter 

 

Without qualifying our opinion we draw our attention to note 21 in the financial statements which indicates a degree of uncertainty 

over the future financial position that may cast doubt over the Cathedral’s ability to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable 

future. 
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Cathedrals Measure 1999 requires us to report to you if, in 

our opinion: 

 

 the information given in the Annual Report is inconsistent in any material respect with the financial statements; or 

 sufficient accounting records have not been kept; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 

 

 

Brewers  

Chartered Accountants and       Bourne House 

Statutory Auditor         Queen Street 

          Gomshall 

          Surrey 

          GU5 9LY 

Date 

Brewers is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006.   
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford   

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities   

For the year ended 31st December 2016     2016    2015 

 Notes Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total 

  Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

Income 1 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Donations & Legacies (i) 499.4 322.2 - 821.6 306.3 422.6 - 
 

728.9 

Grants in support of mission (ii) 27.1 2,419.1 - 
     

2,446.2 19.5 818.3 - 837.8 

Charges and fees in the course of mission (iii) 12.2 6.6 - 18.8 27.5 12.0 - 39.5 

Trading and fundraising (iv) 367.3 42.1 - 409.4 383.2 52.9 - 436.1 

Investments (v) 61.9 8.7 26.7 97.3 65.8 8.5 25.3 99.6 

Other income (vi) - - - - 100.7 - - 100.7 

           

Total Income  967.9 2,798.7 26.7 3,793.3 903.0 1,314.3 25.3 2,242.6 

           

Expenditure  2 

 

        

Raising Funds (i) 

 

329.0 26.0 3.7 358.7 309.6 100.5 3.8 413.9 

Ministry (ii) 228.3 405.1 - 633.4 231.9 411.8 - 643.7 

Cathedral and precincts upkeep (iii) 288.7 2,912.6 - 
     

3,201.3 285.8 924.8 - 1,210.6 

Education and outreach (iv) 17.8 1.4 - 19.2 18.6 1.7 - 20.3 

  863.8 3,345.1 3.7 4,212.6 845.9 1,438.8 3.8 2,288.5 

          

Net income/(expenditure) before 

investment gains/(losses)  104.1 (546.4) 23.0 

     

(419.3) 57.1 (124.5) 21.5 (45.9) 

              

Net gains/(losses) on investments  12.3 9.8 21.8 

         

43.9 (14.7) (6.9) (30.5) (52.1) 

Net income/(expenditure)  116.4 (536.6) 44.8 (375.4) 42.4 (131.4) (9.0) (98.0) 

          

          

Transfers between funds 14 (86.0) 109.0 (23.0)           - (208.2) 208.2 - 

                   

- 

                  

Net movement in funds  30.4 (427.6) 21.8 

   

(375.4) (165.8) 76.8 (9.0) (98.0) 

          

Total Funds brought forward  4,652.9 1,494.9 1085.2   7,233.0 4,818.7 1,418.1 1,094.2 7,331.0 

             

Total funds carried forward  4,683.3 1,067.3 1,107.0   6,857.6 4,652.9 1,494.9 1,085.2 

     

7,233.0 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford   

Consolidated balance sheet at 31st December 2016   

 
Note

s Unrestricted Restricted Endowment 

2016 

Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment 

2015        

Total 

  Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

Fixed Assets 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Heritage Assets 8 224.0 - - 224.0 224.0 - - 224.0 

Investment assets          

Investment Property 9 - - 311.2 311.2 - - 311.2 311.2 

Investments 9 - 214.9 624.5 839.4 - 206.5 606.8 813.3 

  - 214.9 935.7 
    

1,150.6 - 206.5 918.0 1,124.5 

Non investment assets          

Property 10 3,635.0 - - 3,635.0       3,635.0 - - 3,635.0 

Equipment and plant 11 78.0 - - 78.0 94.6 -  -  94.6 

  3,713.0 - - 3,713.0      3,729.6 - - 3,729.6 

Total fixed assets  3,937.0 214.9 935.7 5,087.6        3,953.6 206.5 918.0 5,078.1 

Current assets          

Investments 9 548.0 - - 548.0 539.9 - - 539.9 

Stocks – goods for resale  31.0 - - 31.0 30.2 - - 30.2 

Debtors 12 403.9 557.7 - 961.6 166.7 124.5 - 291.2 

Escrow Account  226.6 - - 226.6 226.6 - - 226.6 

Cash at bank and in hand  188.0 921.4 171.3 1,280.7 229.7 1,230.8 167.2 1,627.7 

  1,397.5 1,479.1 171.3 3,047.9       1,193.1 1,355.3 167.2 2,715.6 

Liabilities due within one year                  

Creditors 13 451.2 626.7 - 1,077.9 393.8 66.9 -  460.7 

  451.2 626.7 - 1,077.9 393.8 66.9 - 460.7 

Net current assets  946.3 852.4 171.3 1,970.0 799.3 1,288.4 167.2 2,254.9 

Total assets less current liabilities  4883.3 1,067.3         1,107.0 7,057.6 4,752.9 1,494.4 1,085.2 7,333.0 

Creditors greater than one year          

Diocesan Loan 13 200.0 - - 200.0 100.0 - - 100.0 

Total assets less liabilities  4,683.3 1,067.3 1,107.0 6,857.6 4,652.9 1,494.9 1,085.2 7,233.0 

Net assets  4,683.3 1,067.3 1,107.0 6,857.6 4,652.9 1,494.9 1,085.2 7,233.0 

          

Funds 14         

General fund  4,683.3 - - 4,683.3        4,652.9 - - 4,652.9 

Fabric fund  - 300.8 263.3 564.1 - 250. 9 255.5 506.4 

Choir & music fund  - 37.9 458.4 
        

496.3 - 37.9 444.4 482.3 

WW1 Fund  - - - - - 2.9 - 2.9 

Capital Appeal fund  - 728.6 - 728.6 - 1,203.2 - 1,203.2 

Property endowment fund  - - 385.3 385.3 - - 385.3 385.3 

  4,683.3 1,067.3 1,107.0 6,857.6      4,652.9 1,494.9 1,085.2 7,233.0 

Approved by the Chapter of Guildford Cathedral and signed on its behalf     

………………………………………………..    

The Very Reverend Dianna Gwilliams – Dean 

 

……………………………………………….. 

The Venerable Stuart Beake – Sub Dean 

Dated ……………………………………….. 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford   

Chapter Statement of Financial Activities   

For the year ended 31st December 2016          2016    

            

2015 

 Note Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total 

  Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

Income 1 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Donations & Legacies (i) 499.4 322.2 - 821.6 306.3 422.6 - 728.9 

Grants in support of mission (ii) 27.1 2,419.1 - 2,446.2 19.5 818.3 - 837.8 

Charges and fees in the course of mission (iii) 12.2 6.6 - 18.8 20.6 12.0 - 32.6 

Trading and fundraising (iv) 128.1 42.1 - 170.2 165.7 52.9 - 218.6 

Investments (v) 61.9 8.7 26.7 97.3 65.8 8.5 25.3 99.6 

Other income (vi) - - - - 100.7 - - 100.7 

           

Total income  728.7 2,798.7 26.7 3,554.1 678.6 1,314.3 25.3 2,018.2 

           

Expenditure 2         

Raising Funds (i) 97.2 26.0 3.7 126.9 90.3 100.5 3.8 194.6 

Ministry (ii) 224.2 405.1 - 629.3 228.5 411.8 - 640.3 

Cathedral and precincts upkeep (iii) 285.5 2,912.6 - 3,198.1 284.1 924.8 - 1,208.9 

Education and outreach (iv) 17.7 1.4 - 19.1 18.6 1.7 - 20.3 

  624.6 3,345.1 3.7 3,973.4 621.5    1,438.8 3.8 2,064.1 

          

Net income/(expenditure) before 

investment gains/(losses)  104.1 (546.4) 23.0 (419.3) 57.1    (124.5) 21.5 (45.9) 

              

Net gains/(losses) on investments  12.3 9.8 21.8 43.9 (14.7) (6.9) (30.5) (52.1) 

Net income/(expenditure)  116.4 (536.6) 44.8 (375.4) 42.4   (131.4) (9.0) (98.0) 

          

          

Transfers between funds 14 (86.0) 109.0 (23.0) - (208.2) 208.2 - 

                   

- 

                  

Net increase movements in funds  30.4 (427.6)         21.8 (375.4) (165.8) 76.8 (9.0) (98.0) 

          

Total funds brought forward        4,651.9 1,494.9 1,085.2 7232.0 4,817.7 1,418.1 1,094.2 7,330.0 

             

Total funds carried forward  4,682.3 1,067.3 1,107.0 6,856.6 4,651.9  1,494.9 1,085.2 7,232.0 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford   

Chapter Balance Sheet at 31st December 2016   

 
 

   2016    2015 

 Notes Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 

  Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

Fixed Assets  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Heritage Assets 8 224.0 - - 224.0 224.0 - - 224.0 

Investment assets          

Investment Property 9 - - 311.2 311.2 - - 311.2 311.2 

Investments 9 - 214.9 624.5 839.4 - 206.5 606.8 813.3 

  - 214.9 935.7 1,150.6 - 206.5 918.0 1,124.5 

Non investment assets          

Property 10 3,635.0 - - 3,635.0 3,635.0 - - 3,635.0 

Equipment and plant 11 74.6 - - 74.6 89.0 -  -  89.0 

  3,709.6 - - 3,709.6 3,724.0 - - 3,724.0 

Total fixed assets  3,933.6 214.9 935.7 

      

5,084.2 3,948.0 206.5 918.0 5,072.5 

Current assets          

Investments 9 548.0 - - 548.0 539.9 - - 539.9 

Stocks  - - - - 0.1 - - 0.1 

Debtors 12 486.4 557.7 - 1044.1 218.9 124.5 - 343.4 

Escrow Account  226.6 - - 226.6 226.6 - - 226.6 

Cash at bank and in hand  113.4 921.4 171.3 1,206.1 193.0 

             

1,230.8 167.2 1,591.0 

  1,374.4 1,479.1 171.3 3,024.8 1,178.5    1,355.3 167.2 2,701.0 

Liabilities due within one 

year                  

Creditors 13 425.7 626.7 - 1,052.4 374.6 66.9 -  441.5 

  425.7 626.7 - 1,052.4 374.6 66.9 - 441.5 

Net current assets  948.7 852.4 171.3 1,972.5 803.9 1,288.4 167.2 2,259.5 

Total assets less current 

liabilities  4,882.3 

 

1,067.3 1,107.0 7,056.7 4,751.9 1,494.9 1,085.2 7,332.0 

Creditors greater than one 

year          

Diocesan Loan  200.0 - - 200.0 100.0 - - 100.0 

Total assets less liabilities  4,682.3 1,067.3 1,107.0 6,856.6 4,651.9 1,494.9 1,085.2 7,232.0 

Net assets  4,682.3 1,067.3 1,107.0 6,856.6 4,651.9 1,494.9 1,085.2 7,232.0 

Funds          

General fund 14 4,682.3 - - 4,682.3 4,651.9 - - 4,651.9 

Fabric fund  - 300.8 263.3 564.1 - 250. 9 255.5 506.4 

Choir & music fund  - 37.9 458.4 496.3 - 37.9 444.4 482.3 

WW1 Fund  - - - - - 2.9 - 2.9 

Capital Appeal Fund   728.6 - 728.6 - 1,203.2 - 1,203.2 

Property endowment fund  - - 385.3 385.3 - - 385.3 385.3 

  4,682.3 1,067.3 1,107.0 6,856.6 4,651.9 1,494.9 1,085.2 7,232.0 

    

Approved by the Chapter of Guildford Cathedral and signed on its behalf     

    

………………………………………………..    

The Very Revd Dianna Gwilliams – Dean    
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

    

                              2016  2015 

Consolidated cash flow statement 

    Cash flows from operating activities 

    Net cash (used in)/operating activities                                            16 

 

(533.5) 

 

(293.7) 

  

 

  
Cash flows from investing activities 

 

 

  Rents received net of costs 

 

14.6 

 

12.6 

Investment income received net of costs 

 

72.4 

 

75.5 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

 

                

(10.1) 

 

(7.0) 

Purchase of investments 

 

             

(352.3) 

 

(200.5) 

Proceeds from sale of investments 

 

           361.9 

 

                   

552.7 

Net cash provided by  investing activities 

 

86.5 

 

433.3 

  

 

  Cash flows from financing activities: 

 

 

  Cash inflows from new borrowing 

 

100.0 

 

100.0 

Release of Escrow  -  99.7 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

 

100.0 

 

199.7 

     Change in cash & cash equivalents in the reporting period 

 

(347.0) 

 

339.3 

Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 

 

1,627.7 

 

1,288.4 

Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period             17 

 
1,280.7 

 

1,627.7 
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The Cathedral Church of the Holy Spirit Guildford  

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

Accounting policies 

 

Basis of Accounts Preparation 

 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as modified by the 

revaluation of investments to market value as necessary. 

 

The financial statements and report are prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 

Republic of Ireland  (FRS102). The Cathedral and its subsidiary are a public benefit group for the purposes of FRS 102 and therefore 

the financial statements are also prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by English Anglican Cathedrals as specified 

by the Church Commissioners in preparing their accounts in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 

Republic of Ireland (FRS102).  

 

The financial statements are prepared in £ sterling and monetary amount are rounded to £ thousand. 

 

Basis of consolidation 

 

The consolidated financial statements comprise those of the Cathedral and its wholly-owned subsidiary company Guildford Cathedral 

Enterprises Limited.  The turnover and expenditure and the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included on a line by line base in 

the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities and the Consolidated Balance sheet. 

 

Going Concern 

 

Chapter considers that while there are financial challenges there are no material uncertainties over the ability to continue as a going 

concern for the foreseeable future which is an assessment in respect of a period of one year form the date of approval of these 

financial statements.  Further details on the financial pressures facing the Cathedral are given in Note 21. 

 

Income 

 

Grants, donations, gift aid reclaimable, fees charged, hire charges, trading income and investment income are recorded when 

receivable. 

 

Grants and donations receivable for the general purposes of the Charity are credited to Unrestricted Funds.  Grants and donations for 

purposes restricted by the wishes of the donor are taken to Restricted Funds. Where any amounts are required to be retained as capital 

in accordance with the donor’s wishes these are accounted for as Endowments. 

 

Legacies are recorded when the amount receivable can be determined with reasonable certainty. 

 

Any income subject to VAT is recorded net of VAT chargeable. 

 

Gifts in kind are recorded at their estimated value.  No value is attributed to voluntary help. 

 

The income from the endowment is unrestricted.  

 

Charging policy 
 

The Cathedral does not charge for entry to the Cathedral.  To achieve its objective, every effort is made to develop earnings from 

commercial sources, and to attract voluntary donations from supporters and visitors.  It is felt that pursuance of this policy will help 

many thousands of people each year to enjoy the beauty of the Cathedral, and come to know Christ better through that experience.  

The Cathedral is open to everyone, regardless of background or means, and it is our aim to ensure that each person receives a personal 

warm welcome. 

 

Donated assets 
 

Offers of gifts in kind are considered by the Chapter, and where appropriate by the Cathedral’s Fabric Advisory Committee. 

 

The disposal of donated assets which are deemed to have outlived their usefulness is carefully discussed in Chapter and by the Fabric 

Advisory Committee, and where necessary proposals are submitted to the Cathedrals Fabric Commission for England.  No items are 

disposed of without the agreement of the FAC, and decisions of the CFCE are always complied with.  In the case of such items once 

donated by individuals or families, surviving relatives are always informed when a decision is made in favour of disposal. 
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The Cathedral Church of the Holy Spirit Guildford  

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

Expenditure 

 

Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefits as 

a result of past transactions or events, it is probable that the transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement and the 

monetary value of the settlement can be measured with sufficient reliability.  Support costs not directly attributable to a particular 

financial activity category are apportioned over the relevant categories on the basis of staff numbers working in each department. 

 

Costs of generating funds, includes both fundraising and marketing together with the gross costs of the shop.  

 

Expenditure on mission is comprised of three categories: Ministry covering clergy stipends and housing together with the costs 

incurred by our choir and music department, Cathedral and Precincts upkeep covering building repairs, depreciation and utilities and 

Education which covers the cost of the Schools department and outward giving.  

 

Governance costs comprise the costs of running the Cathedral, including strategic planning for its future development, external audit, 

legal advice and all costs of complying with constitutional and statutory requirements. 

 

Intra-group sales and associated costs with the Cathedral’s subsidiary company, Guildford Cathedral Shops Limited, are excluded 

from the consolidated income and expenditure. 

 

Taxation 

 

HM Revenue and Customs treats Cathedrals as exempt charities and as such they are entitled to certain tax exemptions on income and 

profit from investments and on any surpluses from trading activities carried out in furtherance of the Cathedral’s primary objectives, if 

these profits are applied solely for charitable purposes. 

 

Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Limited donates its surplus taxable profit to the Cathedral. 

 

The Chapter is eligible to partially recover VAT.  Non-recoverable VAT is attributed to the relevant expense. 

 

Pensions 

 

Up until 2016 lay members of staff were eligible to join the Cathedral’s defined contribution pension scheme that is part of the 

Church of England Pension Board Church Workers scheme. 

 

The Cathedral now operates a defined pension contribution scheme for lay members of staff. The scheme is administered by NEST 

and is a qualifying workplace scheme for auto enrolment. 

 

Operating leases 

 

Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all the benefit and risks of ownership remain with the lessor are charged on 

a straight line basis over the period of the lease. 

 

Heritage Assets 

 

Heritage assets have been capitalised at a valuation carried out by a professional valuer in 2013. No depreciation is charged on these 

assets as they are well maintained and are not believed to have a finite useful economic life.  
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The Cathedral Church of the Holy Spirit Guildford  

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

Accounting policies continued 

Land, Buildings, Inventory and Equipment 
 

The Cathedral land, Cathedral building and ancillary buildings form part of the Cathedral’s Endowment and in accordance with the 

Cathedral Accounting and Reporting Regulations are not included in these accounts. 

 

Fixed assets costing over £1000 are capitalised in the year of purchase. 

 

Freehold buildings are not amortised on the basis of immateriality due to long unexpired lives and high residual values.  The 

Cathedral has a policy and practice of regular maintenance and properties are also unlikely to suffer obsolescence. The Cathedral 

undertakes annual impairment reviews of all properties stated in the accounts.  A valuation of non-investment property was carried 

out by Clarke Gammon & Wellers, Chartered Surveyors, in 2011.  The transitional provisions of FRS 102 have been used to treat this 

valuation as deemed cost. 

 

Depreciation of other assets is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation of fixed assets, less their estimated 

residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases: 

 

 Furniture and fittings 10% straight line basis 

 Office and catering equipment over 3 – 4 years 

 Ceremonial Garments     over 25 years 

 

 

Investments 

 

Property investments are stated at fair value in the balance sheet date. External revaluations are carried out every 5 years by a 

professional valuer. Unrealised gains and losses are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities. No depreciation is charged on 

investment properties. 

 

Investments are valued at the balance sheet date at their market value.  Any unrealised gain/loss in the year is shown in the Statement 

of Financial Activities. If a sale is expected within twelve months the amount is shown under current assets. 

 

The investment held in the Cathedral’s wholly owned subsidiary, Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Limited is held at cost in the 

Cathedral entity balance sheet. 

 

The carrying value of all investments is reviewed annually for impairment. 

 

Stocks 

 

Stocks are items purchased for re-sale by Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Limited and are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable 

value, after making allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items. 

 

Financial Instruments 

 

Apart from the investments within Fixed assets investments and Current asset investments the Cathedral holds only basic financial 

instruments.  

 

Debtors are measured at amortised cost and are held at settlement amount net of discounts less any provision for non- recoverability. 

 

Creditors are measured at amortised cost and are held at settlement amount net of discounts.  

 

Concessionary loans  

The concessionary loan from the Diocese is measured at a historic cost value. 

 

Unrestricted Funds 

 

Unrestricted funds are donations and incoming resources receivable or generated for the objects of the Cathedral without further 

specified purpose and are available as general funds. 
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The Cathedral Church of the Holy Spirit Guildford  

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

Accounting policies continued 

 

Designated Funds 

 

These are reserves set aside by the Dean and Chapter out of unrestricted funds for specific future purposes and projects. 

 

Restricted Funds 

 

Restricted funds are to be used for a specific purpose as laid down by the donor.  Expenditure which meets criteria is charged to the 

fund. 

 

Endowment Funds 

 

a) Property Endowment Fund – The Cathedral can use these funds for the improvement or development of any property in 

which it has an interest (other than the Cathedral and its ancillary buildings) except for £20,000 which could be used for the 

choir and music. 

 

b) Other Endowment Capital – only the income can be spent on these funds. 

 

Policy for transfer between funds 

 

The transfers from the General Fund to the restricted fund represent reimbursement of any shortfall of income over expenditure. The 

transfers from the Endowment Funds, to the General Fund, are to transfer surpluses on these funds. 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

1. Income    2016    2015 
   

 
Unrestrict

ed Restricted 

Endowmen

t  Total 

Unrestrict

ed 

Restricte

d 

Endowmen

t  Total 

   

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 
   

(i) Donations and legacies £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
   

Congregational collections and giving 150.7 - - 150.7 151.9 - - 151.9 
   

Donations 59.9 49.8 - 109.7 93.3 15.1 - 108.4 
   

Income from Appeals - 178.0 - 178.0 - 348.5 - 348.5 
   

Tax recoverable under gift aid 43.8 13.0 - 56.8 34.1 30.4 - 64.5 
   

Income from Friends and local trusts - 31.4 - 31.4 - 28.6 - 28.6 
   

Legacies 245.0 50.0 - 295.0 27.0 - - 27.0    

 499.4 322.2 - 821.6 306.3 422.6 - 728.9 
   

(ii) Grants in support of mission            

Church Commissioners for clergy stipends  - 129.8 - 129.8 - 127.8 - 127.8    

Church Commissioners for lay staff salaries - 66.5 - 66.5 - 65.9 - 65.9    

Diocesan grants for University Chaplain stipend - 12.1 - 12.1 - 12.0 - 12.0 
   

Heritage Lottery - 1,619.3 - 1,619.3 - 306.9 - 306.9 
   

Church Care - 561.5 - 561.5 - 287.5 - 287.5    

Other grants 27.1 29.9 - 57.0 19.5 18.2 - 37.7    

 27.1 2,419.1 - 2,446.2 19.5 818.3 - 837.8 
   

(iii) Charges and fees in the course of mission            

Special services 12.2 6.6 - 18.8 27.5 12.0 - 39.5    

 12.2 6.6 - 18.8 27.5 12.0 - 39.5 
   

(iv) Trading and fundraising                

Charges to visitors 2.8                 - - 2.8 7.4 - - 7.4 
   

Income from lettings of Cathedral 216.9 

             

42.1 - 259.0 196.1 41.3 - 237.4 

   

Income from fundraising events 21.4             - - 21.4 43.7 11.4 - 55.1    

Income from activities generating funds 126.2              - - 126.2 136.0 0.2 - 136.2 
   

 367.3 42.1 - 409.4 383.2 52.9 - 436.1    

(v) Investments         
   

Income from other investments 61.4 8.7 26.7 96.8 65.6 8.5 25.3 99.4 
   

Interest receivable on short term deposits 0.5 - - 0.5 0.2 - - 0.2    

 61.9 8.7 26.7 97.3 65.8 8.5 25.3 99.6    

(vi) Other income            

Gains on disposal of investments - - - - - - - -    

Other items - - - - 100.7 - - 100.7    

 - - - - 100.7 - - 100.7 
   

Total income 967.9 2,798.7 26.7 3,793.3 903.0 1,314.3 25.3 2,242.6    
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

2. Expenditure    2016 
   

2015 

 Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

(i) Raising funds £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Costs of facilities for visitors 8.4 0.1 - 8.5 10.7 0.3 - 11.0 

Costs of services directly recoverable 6.8 0.8 - 7.6 43.7 0.2 - 43.9 

Gross costs of trading activities 252.6 0.4 - 253.0 220.0 0.8  220.8 

Costs of appeal 40.0 17.4 - 57.4 - 81.3 - 81.3 

Costs of fundraising  0.7 0.3 - 1.0 14.4 10.0 - 24.4 

Investment property costs 1.5 - - 1.5 2.5 - - 2.5 

Investment management costs 3.3 1.3 3.7 8.3 3.7 1.3 3.8 8.8 

Support Costs 15.7 5.7 - 21.4 14.6 6.6 - 21.2 

 329.0 26.0 3.7 358.7 309.6 100.5 3.8 413.9 

              

         

(ii) Ministry         

Clergy stipends and working expenses 9.3 143.5 - 152.8 7.4 140.8 - 148.2 

Clergy housing costs 27.3 - - 27.3 21.6 - - 21.6 

Clergy support costs 26.3 18.3                    - 44.6 26.2 20.7 - 46.9 

Services and music 20.1 190.8                    - 210.9 26.1 182.2 - 208.3 

Support costs 145.3 52.5 - 197.8 150.6 68.1 - 218.7 

                 

 228.3 405.1 - 633.4 231.9 411.8 - 643.7 

             

(iii) Cathedral and precincts upkeep         

Major Cathedral repairs and restoration - 2,814.1 - 2,814.1 - 811.8 - 811.8 

Maintenance and interior upkeep 182.3 25.2 - 207.5 195.8 47.8 - 243.6 

Cathedral insurance  - 42.7 - 42.7 - 34.8 - 34.8 

Precinct security and gardens upkeep 21.7 - - 21.7 22.8 - - 22.8 

Support costs 84.7 30.6 - 115.3 67.2 30.4 - 97.6 

                 

 288.7 2,912.6 - 3,201.3 285.8 924.8 - 1,210.6 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

    2016    2015 

3. Expenditure (continued) Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

(iv) Education and outreach £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Educational activities 6.7 - - 6.7 9.6 0.9 - 10.5 

Charitable and other giving 7.5 - - 7.5 7.2 - - 7.2 

Support costs 3.6 1.4 - 5.0 1.8 0.8 - 2.6 

                 

 17.8 1.4 - 19.2 18.6 1.7 - 20.3 

         

                 Total expenditure  

863.8 3,345.1 3.7 4,212.6 845.9 1,438.8 3.8 2,288.5 

         
             

5. Support costs         

Utilities 69.3 - - 69.3 55.6 - - 55.6 

Depreciation 26.7 - - 26.7 28.6 - - 28.6 

Administration expenses 46.5 5.0 - 51.5 68.6 10.9 - 79.5 

Governance 26.9 - - 26.9 20.5 - - 20.5 

Sundry including information technology 13.3 14.4 - 27.7 20.5 9.7 - 30.2 

Bank charges 4.5 - - 4.5 3.7                - 

                   

- 3.7 

Personnel and training 62.1 70.8 - 132.9 36.7 85.3 - 122.0 

 249.3 90.2 - 339.5 234.2 105.9 - 340.1 

              

         

 

The support costs have been allocated between departments according to the number of people employed in that department. 

 

Total Commitments under non-cancellable leases                          

  

                                                                  2016                        2015 

              £’000            £’000 

Under 1 year                                                       -                                - 

2-5 years                                                        60.0   60.0 

Greater than 5 years                 -         - 

                __        __ 

                                                                     60.0    60.0 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

Notes to the Chapter Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

1. Income    2016    2015 
   

 Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 
   

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 
   

(i) Donations and legacies £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000    

Congregational collections and giving 150.7 -         - 150.7 151.9 -           - 151.9 
   

Donations 59.9 49.8         - 109.7 93.3 15.1           - 108.4 
   

Income from Appeals - 178.0         - 178.0 - 348.5           - 348.5 
   

Tax recoverable under gift aid 43.8 13.0         - 56.8 34.1 30.4           - 64.5    

Income from Friends and local trusts - 31.4         - 31.4 - 28.6           - 28.6    

Legacies 245.0 50.0         - 295.0 27.0 -           - 27.0 
   

 499.4 322.2         - 821.6 306.3 422.6           - 728.9    

(ii) Grants in support of mission            

Church Commissioners for clergy stipends  - 129.8          - 129.8 - 127.8           - 127.8 
   

Church Commissioners for lay staff salaries - 66.5          - 66.5 - 65.9           - 65.9    

Diocesan grants for University Chaplain stipend - 12.1         - 12.1 - 12.0           - 12.0    

Heritage Lottery - 1,619.3         - 1,619.3 - 306.9           - 306.9    

Churchcare - 561.5         - 561.5 - 287.5           - 287.5 
   

Other grants 27.1 29.9         - 57.0 19.5 18.2           - 37.7    

 27.1 2,419.1         - 2,446.2 19.5 818.3           - 837.8 
   

(iii) Charges and fees in the course of mission            

Special services 12.2 6.6           - 18.8 20.6 12.0            - 32.6    

 12.2 6.6           - 18.8 20.6 12.0            - 32.6 
   

(iv) Trading and fundraising                

Charges to visitors 2.8 -            - 2.8 3.3 -            - 3.3 
   

Income from lettings of Cathedral 116.6 42.1             - 158.7 133.6 41.3            - 174.9 
   

Income from fundraising events 8.5 -             - 8.5 28.8 11.4            - 40.2    

Income from activities generating funds 0.2 -             - 0.2 - 0.2             - 0.2 
   

 128.1 42.1             - 170.2 165.7 52.9             - 218.6    

(v) Investments            

Income from other investments 61.4 8.7            26.7 96.8 65.6 8.5         25.3 99.4 
   

Interest receivable on short term deposits 0.5 -               - 0.5 0.2 -            - 0.2 
   

 61.9 8.7           26.7 97.3 65.8 8.5         25.3 99.6    

(vi) Other income            

Gains on disposal of investments     - -           - -    

Other items - -            - - 100.7 -            - 100.7 
   

 - -             - - 100.7 -             - 100.7 
   

Total income 728.7         2,798.7        26.7 3, 554.1 678.6 1,314.3        25.3 2,018.2    
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Notes to the Chapter Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

2. Expenditure    2016 
   

2015 

 Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

(i) Raising funds £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Costs of facilities for visitors 8.4 0.1 - 8.5 10.7 0.3 - 11.0 

Costs of services directly recoverable 6.8 0.8 - 7.6 3.8 0.2 - 4.0 

Gross costs of other trading activities 21.2 0.4 - 21.6 40.6 0.8  41.4 

Costs of appeal 40.0 17.4 - 57.4 - 81.3 - 81.3 

Costs of fundraising  0.7 0.3 - 1.0 14.4 10.0 - 24.4 

Investment property costs 1.5 - - 1.5 2.5 - - 2.5 

Investment management costs 3.3 1.3 3.7 8.3 3.7 1.3 3.8 8.8 

Support Costs 15.3 5.7 - 21.0 14.6 6.6 - 21.2 

 97.2 26.0 3.7 126.9 90.3 100.5 3.8 194.6 

             

          

         

(ii) Ministry         

Clergy stipends and working expenses 9.3 143.5 - 152.8 7.4 140.8 - 148.2 

Clergy housing costs 27.3 - - 27.3 21.6 - - 21.6 

Clergy support costs 26.3 18.3 - 44.6 26.2 20.7 - 46.9 

Services and music 20.1 190.8 - 210.9 22.7 182.2 - 204.9 

Support costs 141.2 52.5 - 193.7 150.6 68.1 - 218.7 

             

 224.2 405.1 - 629.3 228.5 411.8 - 640.3 

         

(iii) Cathedral and precincts upkeep         

Major Cathedral repairs and restoration - 2,814.1 - 2,814.1 - 811.8 - 811.8 

Maintenance and interior upkeep 181.5 25.2 - 206.7 194.1 47.8 - 241.9 

Cathedral insurance  - 42.7 - 42.7 - 34.8 - 34.8 

Precinct security and gardens upkeep 21.7 - - 21.7 22.8 - - 22.8 

Support costs 82.3 30.6 - 112.9 67.2 30.4 - 97.6 

                 

 285.5 2,912.6 - 3,198.1 284.1 924.8 - 1,208.9 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

Notes to the Chapter Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

    2016    2015 

3. Expenditure (continued) Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

(iv) Education and outreach £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Educational activities 6.7 - - 6.7 9.6 0.9 - 10.5 

Charitable and other giving 7.5 - - 7.5 7.2 - - 7.2 

Support costs 3.5 1.4 - 4.9 1.8 0.8 - 2.6 

                 

 17.7 1.4 - 19.1 18.6 1.7 - 20.3 

         

                 Total expenditure  

624.6 3,345.1 3.7 3,973.4 621.5 1,438.8 3.8 2,064.1 

         
             

5. Support costs         

Utilities 69.3 - - 69.3 55.6 - - 55.6 

Depreciation 24.6 - - 24.6 28.6 - - 28.6 

Administration expenses 46.5 5.0 - 51.5 68.6 10.9 - 79.5 

Governance 23.9 - - 23.9 20.5 - - 20.5 

Sundry including information technology 13.3 14.4 - 27.7 20.5 9.7 - 30.2 

Bank charges 2.6 - - 2.6 3.7                - 

                   

- 3.7 

Personnel and training 62.1 70.8 - 132.9 36.7 85.3 - 122.0 

 242.3 90.2 - 332.5 234.2 105.9 - 340.1 

              

         

 

The support costs have been allocated between departments according to the number of people employed in that department. 

 

Total Commitments under non-cancellable leases                          

  

                                                                  2016                        2015 

              £’000            £’000 

Under 1 year                                                       -                                - 

2-5 years                                                        60.0   60.0 

Greater than 5 years                 -         - 

                __        __ 

                                                                     60.0    60.0 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

 

6. Staff Costs Cathedral and Guildford Cathedral Enterprises 

  2016 

£’000 

 2015 

£’000 

i. Salaries and stipends  714.2  718.3 

 Employers National Insurance costs  59.7  59.8 

 Employers pension costs  48.3  48.7 

       Total employment costs   822.2  826.8 

     (No employee received more than £60,000 per annum.) 

 2016  2015 

ii. The average monthly number of employees of all entities included in the 

Consolidated Financial Statements:    

 Ministry and music  18.0  18.0 

 Clergy support  2.0  2.0 

 Education              1.0  1.0 

 Cathedral and precincts upkeep  6.0  6.0 

 Fundraising              2.0  2.0 

 Shops  2.0  2.0 

 Governance  1.0  1.0 

 Administrative support  8.0  8.0 

            40.0  40.0 

 

 

      Ministry and Music includes Lay Clerks. 

 2016  2015 

ii. This is represented on a full time equivalent basis as follows:     

 Ministry and music  8.5  8.5 

 Clergy support  1.6  1.8 

 Education  0.2  0.1 

 Cathedral and precincts upkeep  5.9  4.6 

 Fundraising  1.1  1.9 

 Shops  1.2  1.2 

 Governance  0.3  0.3 

 Administrative support  3.9  4.0 

  22.7  22.4 

 

 

     

Chapter considers its key management personnel to comprise the members of the Chapter, and the Director of Operations. The total  

amount received by key management personnel during the year was £187,237 (2015 £183,820). 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

Notes to the Consolidated and Chapter Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

 

The stipend and pension provision of three clerical members of chapter shown in employment costs are funded fully  

by a grant from the Church Commissioners, The Archbishops Council and the Church of England Pensions Board. Each of the  

individuals also benefit from housing provided by the Cathedral free of rent and rates in furtherance of their duties. The  

Cathedral also pays a contribution to the telephone bills. The stipend for the year was £99,700 (2016: £98,400) and pension  

provision was £29,900 (2016: £29,300). 

 

The clergy pension contributions are paid by the diocese to the Church of England Funded Pensions Scheme.   

This is a defined benefit scheme but the Cathedral is not able to identify its share of the underlying assets and  

liabilities.  Each employer in the Scheme pays the same contribution rate, calculated on the basis of an actuarial  

valuation of the Scheme.  The current rate averages 30%. 

 

No remuneration was paid to lay members of Chapter during the year (2015: nil) 

 

 Expenses paid to Members of the Chapter. 

  2016    

£’000 

 2015    

£’000 

Travel  5.8  4.1 

Hospitality  0.3  0.4 

Other  1.8  0.3 

  7.9  4.8 

Expenses were reimbursed to five members of the Chapter. 

 

7. Professional Costs 

  2016 

£’000 

 2015 

£’000 

Operating leases  8.9  

 

7.1 

Investment Consultants  8.2  8.8 

Audit fee – Cathedral  6.1  6.1 

Audit fee –  Cathedral Enterprises   2.5  2.5 

Accounts preparation  - Cathedral   3.0  - 

Accounts preparation – Cathedral Enterprises   0.8  0.8 

Taxations – Cathedral Enterprises   0.2  0.2 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

Notes to the Consolidated and Chapter  Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

8. Heritage Assets - Consolidated and Chapter 

    2016    2015 

 Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Heritage Assets at market value 1 January 2016 224.0 - - 224.0 224.0 - - 224.0 

Additions/disposals - - - - - -  - 

Transfer to unrestricted funds - - - - - - - - 

Revaluation - - - - - - - - 

Heritage Assets at market value 31 December 2016 224.0 - - 224.0 224.0 - - 224.0 

        ============================================================== 

The heritage assets were valued in February 2006 by Keith Baker, a 19th & 20th Century decorative Arts consultant. A subsequent 

valuation  

has been performed by Stephen Clarke of Christies & Roger Heath-Bullock in March 2013.  The basis of the valuation was replacement 

cost.  

 

The assets have mostly been donated to the Cathedral over many years. These assets are predominantly liturgical vessels such as 

chalices, crosses and candlesticks but include the recent addition of jubilee copes.  Prior to 2013 there were no changes in value. 

 

The Cathedral keeps a register of the assets which are held in the Treasury or the safe and these are used for special services. They are 

regularly polished and maintained and are not considered to have a finite useful economic life and therefore no  

depreciation has been charged. 

 

9. Investments 

    Consolidated and Chapter 

 

Current 

Assets 

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  

2016    

Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  

2015 

Total 

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

Investments at market value 1 January 

2016 539.9 206.5 606.8 
           

1,353.2 903.7 214.2 639.7 1,757.6 

Additions 123.6 78.1 150.6 352.3 90.0 - 110.6 200.6 

Disposals (124.7)       (77.8) (146.0) 
              

(348.5) (425.1) - (101.6) (526.7) 

Cash held for re-investment (1.3) 0.4 (3.4) 
                 

(4.3) (2.9) (0.8) (10.3) (14.0) 

Net (decrease) / increase on revaluation 10.5 7.7 16.5 34.7 (25.8) (6.9) (31.6) (64.3) 

Investments at market value 31 

December 2016 548.0 214.9 624.5 

            

1,387.4 539.9 206.5 606.8 1,353.2 

          

Unrestricted investments are treated as current assets in 2016 due to the expected liquidation within one year. 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

Notes to the Consolidated and Chapter  Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

Of the investments held on 31
st 

December 2016, the material investments by fund are: 

 

 

Unrestricted 

Fund 

Restricted 

Fund 

Endowment 

Fund 

Total 

 

£000s £000s £000s £000s 

Aviva Investors UK Svcs Ltd Strategic Bond 2 Nav 

               77.1                -                 91.7      168.8 

Artemis Fund Managers Strategic Bond MI Inc.                63.4                -                     -        63.4 

NB Global Floating Rate Inc FD Ltd Red. Ord. Npv. GPB                 96.5                   -              113.2       209.7 

New Capital Fund Management Wealthy Nations Bond Instl. GBP Dis.              71.6           88.7                                     -      160.3 

Twenty Four Income Fund Ord Red GPB 0.01                 96.7               -                                104.7      201.4 

 

 

9. Investments freehold property – Consolidated and Chapter 

    2016    2015 

 Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Value at 1 January 2016 
 

- - 311.2 311.2 

 

-              -  311.2 311.2 

Additions -              - - - -              -              -               -  

Disposals/Transfer to Equipment & Plant - - - -              -              -              -              - 

Revaluation -            - - -              -              -              -              - 

Value at 31 December 2016 
 

- - 311.2 311.2 

 

-              -  311.2 311.2 

         

Depreciation at 1 January 2016 -             - - - -              -               -               -  

Depreciation on disposals  - - - - -              -              -              - 

Revaluation              - - -              -               -               -               -  

Depreciation at 31 December 2016 -   - - -     -               -               -               -  

         

At net book value 31 December 2016 
 

- - 311.2 311.2 

 

-              -  311.2 311.2 

 

Investment in Subsidiary (Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Ltd) – Chapter 

    2016    2015 

 Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

SHARE CAPITAL £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Value at 1 January 2016 
 

0.1 - - 0.1 

 

0.1              -  - 0.1 

Additions -  - - -  -               -              -  - 

Value at 31 December 2016 0.1   - - 0.1 

 

0.1    -               -    0.1  

 

Results for the trading subsidiary are given in note 15. 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford  

Notes to the Consolidated & Chapter  Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

10. Non-investment freehold property – Consolidated and Chapter 

    2016    2015 

 Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Value at 1 January 2016 
 

3,635.0 - -           3635.0 

 

3,635.0              -  - 3,635.0 

Additions -              - - - - -              -               -  

Disposals/Transfer to Equipment & Plant -          - - - -              -              -              - 

Revaluation -         - - -              -              -              -              - 

Value at 31 December 2016 
 

3635.0 - -        3635.0 

 

3,635.0              -  - 3,635.0 

         

Depreciation at 1 January 2016 -             - - -              -  -              -               -  

Depreciation on disposals  - - - - -              -              -              - 

Revaluation 
-        - - -              -               -               -               -  

Depreciation at 31 December 2016 
-     - - -     -               -               -               -  

At net book value 31 December 2016 
 

3,635                       - -           3635.0 

 

3,635.0              -  - 3,635.0 

 

The non-investment properties are all held for use as Cathedral clergy and staff housing. 

The investment property is held for commercial use. 

 

The properties were valued 14 March 2011 by Clarke Gammon Wellers, Chartered Surveyors, based on the current market values at 

£3,986,199. 

The valuation was not reflected in the accounts as there was no material difference between the valuation and the carrying value in the 

accounts.  

This valuation did not include 4 Lynwood which was bought for £311,199 out of endowment funds. There is no material difference of current 

market cost compared with the last valuation. 

The consolidated accounts of the Cathedral include the results of its 100% subsidiary Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Limited.  At the 31  

December 2016 Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Limited retained reserves were £59,513 (2015 - £69,328) and a profit of £58,547 was made  

in the year (2015 profit of £68,362). Profit is donated to the parent company. 

 

 

11. Equipment and plant - Consolidated    2016    2015 

 Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost 309.3 - - 309.3 317.4 - - 317.4 

Depreciation           (214.7) - - (214.7) (199.8) -  -  (199.8) 

Net book value at 1 January 2016 94.6 - - 94.6 117.6 - - 117.6 

Additions 10.1 - - 10.1 7.0 - - 7.0 

Disposals - - - - (15.1) - - (15.1) 

Depreciation for year (26.7) - - (26.7) (30.0) - - (30.0) 

Depreciation on disposals - - - - 15.1 - -  15.1 

Net book value at 31 December 2016 78.0 - - 78.0 94.6 - - 94.6 

Cost 319.4 - - 319.4 309.3 - - 309.3 

Depreciation           (241.4) - - (241.4) (214.7) -  -  (214.7) 

Net book value at 31 December 2016 78.0 - - 78.0 94.6 - - 94.6 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford  

Notes to the Consolidated & Chapter  Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

 

11. Equipment and plant - Chapter 

    2016    2015 

 Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 

 Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds 

 

 

Cost 

£’000 

 

301.9 

£’000 

 

- 

£’000 

 

- 

£’000 

 

301.9 

£’000 

 

317.0 

£’000 

 

- 

£’000 

 

- 317.0 

Depreciation (212.9) - - (212.9) (199.4) - - (199.4) 

Net book value at 1 January 2015 89.0 - - 89.0 117.6 - - 117.6 

Additions 10.1 - - 10.1 - - - - 

Transfers from Property - - - - - - - - 

Disposals - - - - (15.1) - - (15.1) 

Depreciation for year (24.5) - - (24.5) (28.6) - - (28.6) 

Depreciation on disposals - - - - 15.1 - - 15.1 

Net book value at 31 December 2016 74.6 - - 74.6 89.0 - - 89.0 

Cost 312.0 - - 312.0 301.9 - - 301.9 

Depreciation (237.4) - - (237.4) (212.9) - - (212.9) 

Net book value at 31 December 2016 74.6 - - 74.6 89.0 - - 89.0 

         
 

12. Debtors                    Consolidated       Chapter 

 2016 

£’000 

2015 

£’000 

 2016 

£’000 

2015 

£’000 

VAT 79.7 12.3  79.7  12.4 

Trade debtors 

 

                         38.3 52.9               31.0 31.9 

Other debtors 36.0 102.9               32.8 98.8 

Prepayments/ accrued income 807.6 123.1  797.1                         113.8 

Guildford Cathedral Enterprises 

Ltd  -  103.5 86.5 

 961.6 291.2  1044.1 343.4 

 

13. Creditors falling due within one year   Consolidated       Chapter 

 2016 

£’000 

2015 

£’000 

 2016 

£’000 

2015 

£’000 
      

Trade creditors 141.1 100.9  138.9 96.1 

VAT - -  - - 

Other creditors 43.6 15.9  26.3 8.1 

Escrow Account Creditor 226.6 226.6  226.6 226.6 

PAYE/NIC 13.9 14.6  13.9 14.6 

Accruals and deferred income 652.7 102.7  646.7 96.1 

 1,077.9 460.7  1,052.4 441.5 
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The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

13. Creditors falling due after more than one year 

Consolidated       Chapter 

 2016 

£’000 

2015 

£’000 

 2016 

£’000 

2015 

£’000 
 

Diocesan Loan          200.0       200.0           100.0         100.0 

 

 

The Cathedral has committed to the HLF project with a value of £5.6 million. This is being funded by the HLF grant and the Capital 

Appeal.  Included in creditors is a concessionary loan from the Diocese of £0.2 million. The facility is up to £0.5 million. The rate of 

interest is Base of England plus 2%. The loan is repayable in March 2018. 

 

14a). Reconciliation of movement in Funds  Consolidated 

   General 

 

        

 HLF 

Choir & 

Music 

Fabric 

Fund 

 

Capital 

Appeal 

 

General        

Stipends 

 

 

WW1 

 

 

Organ   Endowment Total 

  

    

Restricted     restricted  restricted 

 

 restricted 

    

 restricted 

 

   restricted 

 

   restricted   

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Balance at 1 January 2016 4,652.9 - 37.9 250.9 1203.2 - 

 

2.9 

 

- 1085.2 7,233.0 

Incoming resources 967.9 1875.8 78.8 141.8 189.0 208.5 

 

296.1 

 

8.7 26.7 3,793.3 

Outgoing resources (863.8) (2,425.2) (215.1) (71.1) (18.6) (208.5) 

 

(302.3) 

 

(104.3) (3.7) (4,212.6) 

Revaluation of investments  10.5 - - 7.7 - - 

 

- 

 

- 16.5 34.7 

Realised gain on  disposal of 

investments  1.8 - - 2.1 - - 

 

- 

 

- 5.3 9.2 

Transfer between funds  -  549.4 - - (645.0) - 

 

- 

 

95.6 - - 

Transfer between funds (86.0) - 136.3 (30.6) - - 

 

3.3 

 

- (23.0) - 

Balance at 31 December 2016 4,683.3 - 37.9 300.8 728.6 - 

 

- 

 

- 1,107.0 6,857.6 

             

         Chapter 

 General 

 

       

 HLF 

Choir & 

Music 

Fabric 

Fund 

 

Capital 

Appeal 

 

General        

Stipends 

 

 

WW1 

 

 

Organ 

Endowm

ent Total 

  

    

restricted restricted restricted 

 

restricted 

    

restricted 

 

restricted 

 

restricted   

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Balance at 1 January 2016 4,651.9 - 37.9 250.9 1203.2 - 

 

2.9 

 

- 1085.2 7232.0 

Incoming resources 728.7 1875.8 78.8 141.8 189.0 208.5 

 

296.1 

 

8.7 26.7 3,554.1 

Outgoing resources (624.6) (2,425.2) (215.1) (71.1) (18.6) (208.5) 

 

(302.3) 

 

(104.3) (3.7) (3,973.4) 

Revaluation of investments  10.5 - - 7.7 - - 

 

- 

 

- 16.5 34.7 

Realised gain on   

disposal of investments  1.8 - - 2.1 - - 

 

- 

 

- 5.3 9.2 

Transfer between funds  -  549.4 - - (645.0) - 

 

- 

 

95.6 - - 

Transfer between funds (86.0) - 136.3 (30.6) - - 

 

3.3 

 

- (23.0) - 
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Balance at 31 December 2016 4,682.3 - 37.9 300.8 728.6 - - - 1,107.0 6,856.6 

     

The Cathedral Church of The Holy Spirit Guildford 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

 

The transfers from the General Fund and the Choir and Music, to the Fabric fund, represent reimbursement of any shortfall of income 

over expenditure. 

 

The transfers from the Capital Appeal to HLF and the Organ funds, represent reimbursement of any shortfall of income over 

expenditure. 

 

       

14 b). Split of funds by type of 

asset  

 

 Consolidated  

 
General 

Fund 

General 

HLF 

Choir & 

Music 

Fabric 

Fund 

Capital 

Appeal   

Fund 

      

 

WW1 

  

 

Organ 

 

Endowment Total 

  restricted restricted restricted restricted restricted restricted restricted  

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

        

        

£’000 

         

        

£’000 £’000 £’000 

Heritage assets 224.0              -               -  -              -               -               -  - 224.0 

Fixed assets 3,713.0              -               -  -              -               -               -  - 3,713.0 

Investment Property - - - - - - - 311.2 311.2 

Investments 548.0 - - 214.9 - - - 624.5 1,387.4 

Escrow Account 226.6 - - - - - - - 226.6 

Cash at bank and short term deposits 188.0 203.9 15.6 37.3 728.6 

 

(83.5) 19.5 171.3 1,280.7 

Stocks 31.0              -               -  -              -  

 

-              -  - 31.0 

Debtors and prepayments 403.9 390.2 22.3 50.0              -  

 

95.2 - - 961.6 

Creditors and accruals (651.2) (594.1) - (1.4) - 

 

(11.7) (19.5) - (1,277.9) 

Balance at 31 December 2016 4,683.3 - 37.9 300.8 728.6 - - 1,107.0 6,857.6 

         

14 b). Split of funds by type of 

asset  

 

Chapter  

   

  

 
General 

Fund 

 

General 

HLF 

Choir & 

Music 

Fabric 

Fund 

Capital 

Appeal 

Fund 

      

 

WW1 

  

 

Organ Endowment Total 

  

 

restricted restricted restricted restricted 

 

restricted 

 

restricted restricted  

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Heritage assets 224.0              -              - -              -    -           -  - 224.0 

Fixed assets 3,709.6              -               -  -              -           -            -  - 3,709.6 

Investment Property - - - - - - - 311.2 311.2 

Investments 548.0 - - 214.9 - - - 624.5 1,387.4 

Escrow Account 226.6 - - - - - - - 226.6 

Cash at bank and short- term deposits 113.4 203.9 15.6 37.3 728.6 (83.5) 19.5 171.3      1,206.1 

Stocks -              -               -  -              -  -           -  - - 

Debtors and prepayments 486.4 390.2 22.3 50.0              -  95.2 - - 1,044.1 

Creditors and accruals (625.7) (594.1) - (1.4) - (11.7) (19.5) - (1,252.4) 

Balance at 31 December 2016 4,682.3 - 37.9 300.8 728.6 - - 1,107.0 6,856.6 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 

          Consolidated 

14 c) Split of funds by type of 

reserve  

 

  

 

 

  

  

 General HLF    

Choir  

& 

Music Fabric 

                                      

Capital 

Appeal WW1 

 

 

Organ 

 

Property 

Endowment Total 

 

Total 

 Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 2016 2015 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Endowment capital - - 458.4 263.3 - - - 

 

385.3 1,107.0  1,085.2 

Unrestricted funds 

 

1,574.1 - - - - - - 
 

                - 1,574.1 

       

1,543.7 

Restricted funds - - 37.9 300.8 728.6 - - 
 

               - 1,067.3 

    

1,494.9 

Revaluation reserve  3,109.2 - - - - - - 
 

              - 3,109.2 

    

3,109.2 

Total 4,683.3 - 496.3 564.1 728.6 - - 

 

385.3  6,857.6 

    

7,233.0 

                  

   

 

                             Chapter 

14 c) Split of funds by type of 

reserve  

 

     

   

   

 General HLF    

Choir  

& 

Music Fabric 

                                      

Capital 

Appeal WW1 

 

 

Organ 

 

Property 

Endowment Total 

 

Total 

 Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 2016 2015 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Endowment capital - - 458.4 263.3 - - - 

 

385.3 1,107.0  1,085.2 

Unrestricted funds 

 

1,573.1 - - - - - - 
 

- 1,573.1 

    

1,542.7 

Restricted funds - - 37.9 300.8 728.6 - - 
 

- 1,067.3 

    

1,494.9 

Revaluation reserve  3,109.2 - - - - - - 
 

- 3,109.2 

    

3,109.2 

Total 4,682.3 - 496.3 564.1 728.6 - - 

 

 

  385.3 

  

6,856.6 

   

7,232.0 

                                           

           

The movement on the Capital Appeal is:- 

             

 2016 2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Brought forward  1,203.2 1,129.3 

Donations 175.6 308.5 

Gift Aid 11 27.3 

Bank Interest 2.4 2.1 

Events - 37.9 

Repairs and Maintenance Heritage  (645.0) 

 

(215.3) 

 

Costs of fundraising (17.6) (84.2) 

Support Costs (1.0) (2.4) 
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 728.6 1,203.2 

 

 

The Cathedral Church of the Holy Spirit 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31 December 2016 

 

15. Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Limited – Company number: 02299147 
The Cathedral owns 100% of Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Limited, the results of which are consolidated in these financial 

statements.   

 

The company made a profit for the year of £58,547 (2015 – profit of £68,362), which was covenanted to the Cathedral. 

 

At 31 December 2016 the Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Limited balance sheet showed retained profits of £966 (2015: £966) and the 

company owed the Chapter £103,523  (2015 - £86,469). 

 

A summary of the trading results for the year, which have been consolidated into Chapter accounts, are shown below. 

 

 

 2016 2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Turnover 314.5 320.8 

Cost of Sales 141.6 126.8 

Gross Profit 172.9 194.0 

Other operating charges 114.4 125.7 

Profit covenanted to the Cathedral 58.5 68.3 

 

 

16. Cash flow statement notes 

 

  

2016 

 

2015 

  

£ 

 

£ 

Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cashflow from operating 

activities  

 

(375.4) 

 

(98.0) 

Revaluation of investments  

 

(43.9) 

 

52.1 

Adjustments for: 

    Depreciation charges 

 

26.7 

 

30.0 

(Income) from property and investments 

 

(96.8) 

 

(99.4) 

Property management costs, rental collection fees and investment 

management costs 

 

9.8 

 

11.4 

(Increase)/decrease in stocks 

 

(0.7) 

 

(6.8) 

(Increase)/decrease in debtors 

 

(670.4) 

 

(157.6) 

Increase/(decrease) in creditors 

 

617.2 

 

(25.4) 

Net cash /(used in) operating activities 

 

(533.5) 

 

(293.7) 

 

 

117. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents   
 

    Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

    Cash in hand 

 

1,280.7 

 

1,627.7 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

 

1,280.7 

 

1,627.7 
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The Cathedral Church of the Holy Spirit 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31 December 2016 

 

 

18. The Friends of Guildford Cathedral (Charity No. 250402) 
 (These results are not included in the consolidated accounts) 

 

Grants from The Friends of Guildford Cathedral amounting to £NIL were received in 2016 (2015: £10,000) by the Capital Appeal.
 

 

The Friends accounts for the year ended 31st December 2016 show a surplus for the year before revaluation of investments of £8,712 

(2015 – profit of £15,173) and a surplus of £15,744 after the revaluation of investments (2015 – surplus of £8,894).  Grants paid out 

totalled £NIL (2015 - £10,000).  Reserves at 31st December 2016 totalled £196,169 (2015 - £176,528) of which £153,182 was 

unrestricted (2015 - £137,408).   

 

19. Guildford Cathedral Music Development Foundation (Charity No 1093933) 

 (These results are not included in the consolidated accounts) 

 

 Grants from The Guildford Cathedral Music Development Foundation amounting to £36,368 were received in 2016 (2015:  £28,809).  

 

The accounts for the year to 31st December 2016 show that the organisation incurred a surplus of £7,634 compared with a deficit of 

£7,181after revaluation of investments for the year ended 31st December 2015.  Reserves at 31st December 2016 totalled £896,817 of 

which £677,788 were restricted funds.  There was a £22,536 profit on the revaluation of assets.   

 

20. Ultimate Controlling Party 
There is no ultimate controlling party. 

 

21. Cathedral Activities 

 

The Cathedral’s activities together with the factors likely to affect its future development and financial position are set out on pages 4 to 

10 in the Annual Report. As described in the report the Cathedral operates an annual deficit of some £208,000 on its operational 

activities. Being able to finance this deficit is dependent on regular sources of income. At the same time, the major refurbishment work 

that is currently underway relies upon the pledges given under the capital appeal being received, irrecoverable VAT continuing to be 

recovered under the Listed Places of Worship scheme and the costs of the refurbishment of the Cathedral not overrunning beyond the 

built in contingency. 

To help finance the impact on cash flow of the building project the Diocese have agreed a concessionary £300,000 loan facility which 

runs to the 31 March 2018. Chapter has also requested the realisation of the capital in the Newill Bequest, administered on its behalf by 

the Diocesan Board of Finance. This has provided an additional £682,000 which has ameliorated the cash flow position. 

Chapter, based on negotiations to date, are optimistic that the land sale will progress and this together with other measures to secure 

additional funding in the form of grants and donations has led them to have a reasonable expectation that the Cathedral will be able to 

continue operationally for the foreseeable future. For these reasons they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in 

preparing the financial statements.  

 

22. Related Party Transactions 

 

Donations during the year made by chapter members personally or through Trusts controlled by them totalled £92,567.  
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APPENDICES – GUILDFORD CATHEDRAL ANNUAL REPORT 2016 

 

Appendix 1 - Governance  

 

Guildford Cathedral is governed under the Cathedrals Measure 1999 and by a Constitution and Statutes which came into effect on 24 

November 2002, and was last revised in June 2017. Under these regulations, it is the duty of the Chapter to direct and oversee the 

administration of the affairs of the Cathedral and to order the worship and promote the mission of the Cathedral. 

 

Under the Constitution and Statutes, the Corporate Body of the Cathedral Church of the Holy Spirit, Guildford comprises the 

members for the time being of the Cathedral Council, the Chapter and the College of Canons.  It is a body corporate with continual 

succession and a common seal which is known as the common seal of the Cathedral. 

 

Appendix 2 - The Chapter 

 

The Dean 

 

The Dean is the ‘principal dignitary of the Cathedral, next after the Bishop, and is Chairman of the Chapter and President of the 

College of Canons’. S/He is appointed by Her Majesty The Queen, and instituted by the Bishop to the office of Dean of Guildford.  

 

The Dean has the right to preach and celebrate Holy Communion in the Cathedral on occasions agreed by the Chapter. Subject to the 

provisions of Constitution Article 8 and Statutes Articles 1, 2 & 3, no person shall preach within the Cathedral without the approval of 

the Dean. 

 

It is the duty of the Dean, as Chairman of the Chapter, to govern and direct on its behalf the life and work of the Cathedral and, in 

particular, to: 

 

 Ensure that Divine Service is duly performed in the Cathedral; 

 Ensure that the Constitution and Statutes are faithfully observed; 

 Maintain good order and proper reverence in the Cathedral; 

 Secure the pastoral care of all members of the Cathedral community; 

 Take all decisions necessary to deal with any emergency affecting the Cathedral, pending consideration of the matter by the 

Chapter; 

 

The Chapter 

 

The Cathedrals Measure 1999 requires that it shall be the duty of the Chapter to direct and oversee the administration of the affairs of 

the Cathedral and in particular, to: 

 

 Order the worship and promote the mission of the Cathedral; 

 Formulate, after consultation with the Bishop, proposals in connection with the general direction and mission of the 

Cathedral and submit them to the Council for its advice; 

 Prepare an annual budget for the Cathedral; 

 Submit to the Council the annual report and audited accounts and such other reports as may be requested by the Council on 

any matter concerning the Cathedral; 

 Submit to the College of Canons the annual report and audited accounts prepared as aforesaid; 

 Keep under review the Constitution and Statutes of the Cathedral and submit any proposals for their revision to the Council; 

 Manage all property vested in the Cathedral and the income accruing from it and, in particular, ensure that necessary repairs 

and maintenance in respect of the Cathedral and its contents and other buildings and monuments are carried out, and 

 Perform such other functions as may be prescribed. 
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The Chapter is also responsible under the requirements laid down by the Church Commissioners under the powers given them by 

Section 27 of the Cathedrals Measure 1999 for: 

 

 Preparing and publishing an annual report and audited accounts which give a true and fair view of the financial activities for 

each financial year and of the assets, liabilities and funds at the end of each financial year of Guildford Cathedral and its 

consolidated entities; 

 Stating that they have complied in all material respects with Accounting and Reporting for English Anglican Cathedral and 

applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards ; or describing which regulations have not been complied with regulations 

and giving reasons for the non-compliance; 

 Selecting suitable accounting policies and then applying them consistently; 

 Making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 Keeping proper accounting records from which the financial position of the Cathedral can be ascertained with reasonable 

accuracy at any time; 

 Safeguarding the assets of the Cathedral and taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 

irregularities; and 

 Preparing the accounts on an on-going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Cathedral will continue to 

be financially viable. 

 

As far as the Chapter members are aware there is no relevant audit information of which the Cathedral’s auditors are unaware; and the 

Chapter members have taken all the steps that they consider ought to have taken in order to make themselves aware of any relevant 

audit information and to establish that the Cathedral’s auditors are aware of that information. 

 

Method of Appointing Members to the Chapter 

 

In accordance with the Constitution of the Cathedral, the Chapter shall consist of: 

 the Dean, who shall be the chairman and shall have a second or casting vote; 

 all the Residentiary Canons; 

 one lay person appointed by the Bishop after consultation with the Dean and the Chapter; 

 The Cathedral Treasurer; 

 two lay persons elected by a meeting of members of the Cathedral Community; 

 Up to three persons nominated by Chapter for their particular skills (not more than one whom may be a clerk of holy 

orders). 

 

All Lay persons must be actual communicants and shall hold office for three years and shall be eligible for membership for further 

terms of office. 

 

Policies and Procedures for Induction and Training of New Members of Chapter 

 

New members of Chapter are given a comprehensive briefing on the management organisation of the Cathedral, the role and 

responsibilities of the Cathedral Council, the Chapter, the College of Canons and the various supporting Committees. In addition, a 

full set of previous Annual Accounts are made available.  All Chapter members are strongly encouraged to attend training events 

provided by the Association of English Cathedrals upon them taking up the post and at appropriate intervals thereafter. 

 

Members of Chapter 

 

The Dean The Very Revd Dianna Gwilliams    

 

The Precentor & Sub Dean  

 

The Revd Canon Dr Nicholas Thistlethwaite (until 

December 2016) 

  

 

The Residentiary Canons 

 

The Revd Canon Dr Andrew Bishop (non-

stipendary) 

The Revd Canon Dr Julie Gittoes  

The Ven Stuart Beake (non-stipendiary) 

  

 

Chapter Appointees: HR and Safeguarding 

Hon Treasurer 

 

Mrs Ruth Moore  

Mr Ian Kenyon 

  

 

One Lay person appointed by the Bishop 

 

Mr Julian Roberts 

  

 

Two persons elected by Cathedral Community 

 

Mr Ian Bowler   

Mrs Linda Sharpin  
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Chapter Members’ Portfolios 

 

The Very Revd Dianna Gwilliams (Dean) 

The Dean was installed as Dean of Guildford on 15 September 2013, having been Vicar of St Barnabas, Dulwich from 1999 and 

Honorary Canon and Acting Archdeacon of Southwark from 2006.  The Dean’s particular interest is in work with young people, and 

she has served as Diocesan Dean of Women’s Ministry and chairs Inclusive Church, a charity committed to working for a Church that 

is welcoming and open to all.  As Senior Priest of the Diocese, the Dean is a member of the Bishop’s Staff Meeting, Bishop’s Council 

and Diocesan Synod.  The Dean is a member of the Dean’s Conference. 

 

The Revd Canon Dr Nicholas Thistlethwaite (Sub Dean and Precentor) Retired December 2016 

The Precentor is responsible for the Music and Liturgy of the Cathedral.  He is a Trustee of the Guildford Cathedral Music 

Development Foundation and a member of the Westminster Abbey Fabric Commission, the Organs Conservation Committee of the 

Church Building Council, the Guildford Diocesan Advisory Committee, the Diocesan Worship Committee, the Canterbury Cathedral 

Fabric Advisory Committee, the Association of Independent Organ Advisers and the Committee of the Guildford International 

Musical Festival. He writes on liturgy, musical performance and church history.   

 

The Revd Canon Dr Andrew Bishop (University Chaplain and Residentiary Canon) 
Canon Bishop is a Residentiary Canon and Anglican Chaplain to the University of Surrey since September 2011.  As part of a team of 

chaplains, Andrew is involved in pastoral care of students and staff, in playing an active part in building and promoting an 

understanding of faith and between faiths and fostering good relationships in the wider life of the University community. Andrew is 

Benedictine Oblate of Alton Abbey, a member of the Alcuin Club, the Society for Liturgical Studies and has recently been awarded a 

Doctorate by King’s College, London. 

 

The Revd Canon Dr Julie Gittoes (Residentiary Canon) 

 

Canon Gittoes is a Residentiary whose primary focus is on developing education programme of the Cathedral – within the 

congregation, in support of the Diocese and in partnership with the University. This has included contributing to the delivery of the 

HLF project, The People’s Cathedral.  Julie attends the Fabric Advisory, Community and Stewardship Committees and line manages 

the Schools’ and Family Learning Department.  She chairs the ‘Church, Ministry and Theology’ seminar at the Society for the Study 

of Theology and is a member of the American Academy of Religion.  She is also a tutor in doctrine for the St Augustine’s College of 

Theology and the Local Ministry Programme within Guildford Diocese; she continues to write on sacramental theology and 

ecclesiology. Since 2015, Julie has been a member of the Executive Committee of the Association of English Cathedrals.  

 

The Venerable Stuart Beake (Archdeacon of Surrey) 

The Venerable Stuart Beake is the Archdeacon of Surrey and a Residentiary Canon (non-stipendiary).  Stuart is a member of the 

Bishop’s Senior Staff; Diocesan Boards and Committees including: Bishop’s Council (which is also the Diocesan Board of Finance 

Executive and the Diocesan Mission and Pastoral Committee); the Diocesan Board of Education; the Diocesan Advisory Committee 

and the Housing Advisory Committee.  His main responsibilities as Archdeacon include the pastoral and professional support of the 

clergy, managing the appointments process for clergy with his fellow archdeacon, relating to parishes and churchwardens, supporting 

hospital and army chaplains and dealing with a variety of legal, disciplinary and troubleshooting issues. Amongst other 

responsibilities, Stuart is the Warden (and therefore a Trustee) of the St Peter’s Community (which, amongst other  things is 

responsible for St Columba’s House in Woking). He is a governor of the King Edward’s School, Witley, and Hoe Bridge School, and 

is also a Canon Emeritus of Coventry Cathedral. 

 

Mr Ian Kenyon 

Ian Kenyon is currently CFO of Cancer Research UK and has held a number of senior finance roles in a range of retail businesses.  He 

has been a member of the congregation for around 7 years. 

 

Mr Julian Roberts 

Julian Roberts was until recently group chief executive of a FTSE100 international financial services group, and has been a member 

of the congregation for over 15 years. 

 

Mr Ian Bowler 

Ian is Deputy Head Server, Chairman of the Stewardship Steering Group, a member of the Finance and Fundraising Committees, and 

a Non-Executive Director on the Guildford Cathedral Enterprise Board. He has worshipped at the Cathedral since 1988. He worked in 

the City of London as a corporate tax lawyer with one of the leading international law firms, including 12 years as a partner.  

 

Mrs Ruth Moore 

Ruth was Head of Human Resources at St Paul’s Cathedral, London, for some 17 years.  She is currently studying for an MA in 

Classics at King’s College, London.  At Guildford she is responsible for Safeguarding matters. Ruth lives in Farnham and has been an 

occasional worshipper at Guildford Cathedral for many years. 
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Mrs Linda Sharpin 

Linda Sharpin is a chartered accountant who has worked in three FTSE-100 financial services companies in a career spanning 30 

years, holding a variety of financial and corporate governance roles.  Linda also has an Accountancy practice of her own and holds a 

number of non-executive positions. Linda has been a member of the congregation for over 10 years, first coming to the Cathedral as a 

chorister parent.  

 

Appendix 3 - The Cathedral Council 

 

The Cathedrals Measure 1999 requires that it shall be the duty of the Council to further and support the work of the Cathedral, 

spiritual, pastoral, evangelistic, social and ecumenical, reviewing and advising upon the direction and oversight of that work by the 

Chapter and in particular, to: 

 

 Consider proposals submitted by the Chapter in connection with the general direction and mission of the Cathedral and to 

give advice on them to the Chapter; 

 Receive and consider the annual budget of the Cathedral; 

 Receive and consider the annual report and audited accounts; 

 Consider proposals submitted by the Chapter in connection with the Constitution and Statutes of the Cathedral with a view to 

their revision under Part II of this Measure, and 

 Perform such other functions as may be prescribed. 

 

The Chairman is a lay person, not a member of the Chapter, appointed by the Bishop after discussion with the Chapter. The Dean is a 

member ex officio, and the Chapter elects two members. Two members are each elected by the Cathedral Community and the College 

of Canons. Two members are appointed by the Bishop’s Council and four by the Bishop, with the agreement of the Chairman, and 

after consultation with the Dean, to ensure the Council reflects local, Diocesan, ecumenical and national interests. 

 

The Bishop as Visitor is invited to attend as an advisor and non-voting member at all meetings of the Cathedral Council and the 

Chapter continues to be grateful for his support and advice.  

 

Members of Cathedral Council 
 

The Chair                                                                    Lady ElizabethToulson (until November 2016) 

          Mr Peter Shaw (from November 2016) 

The Dean                                                                              The Very Revd Dianna Gwilliams 

Two Members of the Chapter                                              The Revd Dr Andrew Bishop 

                                                                                             Mr Julian Roberts 

Two Members of the College of Canons                             Canon Peter Bruinvels 

                                                                                              Canon Peter Hounslow 

Two Lay Persons elected by the Cathedral Community              Mr Paul Baumann 

                                                                                             Mrs Helen Perkins 

One Person from the Cathedral Staff                                   Mrs Katherine Dienes-Williams 

Two Persons appointed by the Bishop’s Council                Both Vacant 

Four Persons appointed by the Bishop of Guildford                               Canon Clare Turnbull 

          Dr David Ashton (until May 2016, then vacant) 

One Person appointed by the Friends     Mrs Shirley-Margaret Lloyd (until May 2016) 

          Mrs Mary Morris (from May 2016) 

 

 

Appendix 4 -The College of Canons 

The College of Canons consists of the Dean, Residentiary Canons and eighteen Honorary Canons (including the Suffragan Bishop and 

Archdeacons) together with up to 14 Lay Canons from across the Diocese appointed by the Bishop and the Dean.  Membership ceases 

on retirement or removal to another Diocese. Two members are elected to the Cathedral Council. 

 

The role of the College of Canons is to promote and support the Mission and Ministry of the Cathedral in the diocese by drawing on 

the experience of its members in their ministry and reflecting the views of the Diocese. In furtherance of that role it shall: 

 

 Receive and consider the annual report and audited accounts. 

 Discuss such matters concerning the Cathedral as may be raised by any of its members, and 

 Perform such other functions as may be prescribed and relevant to its role. 

 

Members of College of Canons 

 

The Dean The Very Revd Dianna Gwilliams  
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Residentiary Canons The Revd Canon Dr Nicholas Thistlethwaite (until 

October 2016) 

The Revd Canon Dr Julie Gittoes  

 The Revd Canon Dr Andrew Bishop  

 The Ven Stuart Beake, Archdeacon of Surrey  

Supernumerary Canons 

 

Honorary Canons 

The Rt Revd Jo Bailey-Wells, Bishop of Dorking (from 

September 2016) 

The Ven Paul Bryer, Archdeacon of Dorking 

The Revd Canon Nick Aiken  

The Revd Canon Judith Allford  

The Revd Canon William Challis  

The Revd Canon Robert Cotton  

The Revd Canon Dr Anne Gell  

The Revd Canon Karen Hutchinson (until September 

2016) 

The Revd Canon Martyn Neale (deceased July 2017) 

The Revd Canon Dr Andrew Norman 

The Revd Frank Scammell (from February 2017) 

The Revd Canon Stuart Thomas  

The Revd Canon Dr Hazel Whitehead 

The Revd Canon Nick Whitehead  

The Revd Canon David Willey 

 

Honorary Lay Canons Canon Mike Bishop  

Canon Peter Bruinvels 

Canon Hamish Donaldson  

Canon Stephen Green 

Canon Derek Holbird  

Canon Peter Hounslow 

Canon Mary Morris  

Canon Jonathan Neil-Smith 

Canon Geoffrey Riggs 

Canon Peter Shaw (from February 2017) 

Lady Elizabeth Toulson  

Canon Clare Turnbull  

Canon Michael Young 

 

Honorary Ecumenical Associate                                                  The Revd John Hellyer 

   

  

Appendix 5 - The Bishop 

 

The Bishop shall have the principal seat and dignity in the Cathedral. 

 

After consultation with the Chapter and subject to any provision in the Statutes, he may officiate in the Cathedral and use it in his 

work of teaching and mission, for ordinations and synods and for other Diocesan occasions and purposes. Also, 

 

 The Chapter shall from time to time consult the Bishop in respect of the general direction and mission of the Cathedral, and 

the Bishop may at any time seek the advice of the Chapter on any matter. 

 The Constitution of the Cathedral provides that the Bishop shall be the Visitor thereof. 

 The Bishop shall as Visitor hear and determine any question as to the construction of the Constitution and Statutes. 

 The Bishop may hold a visitation of the Cathedral when he considers it desirable or necessary to do so or when requested by 

the Council or the Chapter. 

 In the course of a visitation, the Bishop may give such directions to the Chapter, to the holder of any office in the Cathedral 

or to any person employed by the Cathedral as will, in the opinion of the Bishop, better serve the due observance of the 

Constitution and Statutes. 

 It shall be the duty of any person or body on whom functions are conferred by or under The Cathedrals Measure 1999 to act 

in accordance with any determination under, and any direction under, the above paragraphs. 

 The provisions above are without prejudice to the powers of the Bishop under the Care of Cathedrals (Supplementary 

Provisions) Measure 1994 and his powers as Visitor generally. 

 The Bishop may at any time propose for consideration by the Council amendments to the Constitution. 
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Appendix 6 - The Cathedral Finance Committee    

 

The Constitution requires the setting up of a Finance Committee with the function of advising the Chapter in connection with its 

responsibilities in the field of financial and investment management and the management of property and assets belonging to the 

Cathedral. Chapter receives and acts with the guidance and the advice given to it by CFC. 

 

The Committee consists of the Dean, the Director of Operations, the Treasurer, two or more persons, not being members of Chapter, 

appointed for their expertise and experience in the field of financial and investment management, and one other person appointment 

by Chapter who may be a member of Chapter.  Members are appointed for a renewable period of three years. 

 

The Cathedral’s Finances 

 

Investment Powers - Under the terms of the Cathedrals Measure 1999, the Chapter may invest the Cathedral’s funds in any of the 

following: 

 Land. 

 Funds administered for the Central Board of Finance of the Church of England by CCLA Investment Management Ltd. 

 Investments in which the trustees may invest under the general power of investment in the Trustee Act 2000. 

 The improvement or development of property belonging to the Cathedral, except that endowment funds may not be used to 

improve or develop the Cathedral itself and its ancillary buildings. 

 

Members of the Cathedral Finance Committee  

 Mr Ian Kenyon (Hon Treasurer and Chair) 

 The Very Revd Dianna Gwilliams  

 The Revd Canon Dr Nicholas Thistlethwaite (until October 2016) 

 The Ven Stuart Beake 

Mr Ian Bowler 

 Mr Clive Cunningham  

 Mr Matt O’Grady  

          

Appendix 7 - The Cathedral Community Committee 

 

The Cathedral Community Committee acts as a channel of communication between the Chapter and the Cathedral Community. The 

majority of the Cathedral Community Committee resigned in May 2016, at which point it was decided to re-constitute the Committee 

in the near future. A new committee with revised constitution, membership and terms of reference, will start holding meetings in 

September 2017. 

 

Appendix 8 - Fabric Advisory Committee 

 

Under the Care of Cathedrals Measure 1990, the Fabric Advisory Committee (FAC) is responsible to the Cathedrals Fabric 

Commission for England and considers applications from the Chapter in regard to proposed development of and changes to the 

Cathedral's fabric. 

 

There are eight voting members of the Fabric Advisory Committee, four appointed by the Cathedrals Fabric Commission after 

consultation with the Chapter, and four by the Chapter after consultation with the Commission. The members appoint a Chairman 

from among their own number.  The Dean and the Director of Operations attend meetings on behalf of the Chapter, and other Chapter 

members are free to attend; no members of the Chapter have a vote. The Cathedral Architect and the Cathedral Archaeological 

Consultant, under Section 4 of the Care of Cathedrals Measure 1990, have a duty to attend meetings, although neither has a vote. 

 

The Fabric Advisory Committee 

 

Chairman Mr Nick Sealy  

Ms Beth Astridge (from November 2016) 

Mr Tony Carter (deceased November 2016) 

Mr Colin Kerr  

Mr James Miller  

Mr Paul Williams 

Mrs Mary Sleigh (until February 2016) 

The Revd Canon Charles Stewart (until February 2016) 

The Revd Canon Stuart Thomas (from February 2016) 

Mr Paul Velluet 

Secretary Mr Matt O’Grady  

In attendance Mr John Bailey – Cathedral Architect  

Dr David Bird – Cathedral Archaeologist 

Mr Jim Blake – Head of Property and Facilities 
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The Revd Canon Dr Julie Gittoes, Residentiary Canon 

The Very Revd Dianna Gwilliams, Dean 

Mr Roger Heath-Bullock – Treasury Curator 

The Revd Canon Dr Nicholas Thistlethwaite, The Sub Dean 

(until October 2016)  

 

Appendix 9 - Guildford Cathedral Enterprise Ltd Management Board 

 

In addition there is one other formally constituted organisation involved in aspects of managing the Cathedral’s affairs, 

which is Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Limited.  This Company is wholly owned by the Cathedral, and runs events, 

the Shop and the Refectory contract. Any profits are gifted to the Chapter and are included in the consolidated statement of 

financial activities.  

 

 

Guildford Cathedral Enterprises Limited Management Board Members 
 

The Revd Canon Nicholas Thistlethwaite (Chair) (until October 2016) 

Mr Ian Bowler (Non-Executive Director)  

Mr Andrew Ewbank (Non-Executive Director) 

Mrs Linda Sharpin (Non-Executive Director) 

Ms Jenny Tomley (Non-Executive Director) 

Mr Wallace Vincent (Non-Executive Director) (from January 2016) 

 

Appendix 10 – Cathedral Fundaising Committee 

 

The Fundraising Committee was established in April 2016 to oversee the work of raising money for the operational costs of 

running the Cathedral. 

 

Cathedral Fundraising Committee 

 

Mr Julian Roberts (Chair) 

The Very Reverend Dianna Gwilliams (Dean) 

Mr Ian Bowler 

Mr Matthew Lagden 

Mr Paul Savage 

Mr Charles Whiffin 

Ms Susan Barry (Head of Fundraising) 

Ms Nicola Pratt (Fundraising Officer)                                                                                 

 

 

 

  

  

  

Appendix 11 – Cathedral Lay Staff 

 

Director of Operations  Mr Matt O’Grady  

Organist & Master of the Choristers Mrs Katherine Dienes-Williams 

Dean’s Virger Mr Paul Williamson 

Head of Finance Mr Andrew Grimshaw (until February 2016) 

Mr Ian Carruthers (from November 2016 until June 2017) 

Head of Enterprise  Mrs Caroline Simcox 

Head of Fundraising 

 

Head of Property and Facilities 

Mrs Sian Newton (until October 2016) 

Ms Susan Barry (from January 2017) 

Mr Jim Blake 

Head of Schools Department Mrs Charlotte Potter (from September 2016) 

Shop Manager Mrs Sharon Collier  

In addition we work closely with:  

Refectory Director Mr Will Vinson (until September 2016) 

Mr Brian Stanley (deceased May 2017) 

 

Appendix 12 - Cathedral Volunteers 

 

Chapter acknowledges the enormous contribution made more than 300 volunteers throughout the year.  The various areas of service 

are led by the following:  

 

Cathedral Senior Volunteers 
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Cathedral  LLM (Reader) 

Chief Steward   

Mr John Mitchell 

Mrs Shirley-Margaret Lloyd (until March 2017) 

Mrs Trish Lambert (from March 2017) 

Chief Guide Mrs Janet Mathews 

Captain of Bell Tower Mr Chris Rogers 

Cathedral Archivists Mrs Liz North, Mrs Janet Stubbings 

Friends’ Vice Chairman 

 

Guildford Cathedral Singers Director 

Mrs Shirley-Margaret Lloyd (until May 2016) 

Mrs Mary Morris (from May 2016) 

Mr John Bawden 

Head Server Mr Chris Nott 

Sunday School Mrs Alice Bishop 

Treasury Curator Mr Roger Heath-Bullock 
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Appendix 13 – Cathedral Officers and Advisers 

 

The work of the Chapter would not be possible without support from experts in various professional fields and the following table 

details the Chapter’s advisors: 

 

Architect and Surveyor   Mr John Bailey BA B.Arch. RIBA, AABC  

      Thomas Ford & Partners 

      177 Kirkdale 

      Sydenham 

      London SE26 4QH 

 

Archaeological Consultant   Dr David Bird 

      14 Kings Road 

      Guildford GU1 4JW 

 

Auditors     Mr Andrew Skilton 

Brewers 

      Bourne House 

      Queen Street 

      Gomshall GU5 9LY 

 

Bankers     National Westminster Bank 

      PO Box 1 

      1 Stoke Road 

      Guildford GU1 3ZR 

 

Cathedral Solicitor    Mr Duncan Elson LLB  

      Charles Russell Speechlys 

      One London Square 

      Cross Lanes 

      Guildford GU1 1UN 

 

      

Investment Adviser    Mr James Stewart Smith 

      Charles Stanley & Co Ltd 

      Fairacre House 

      70-72 Chertsey Street 

      Guildford GU1 4HL 


